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Notice to the Shareholders

NOTICE is hereby given that the TENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of CHENNAI METRO RAIL
LIMITED will be held on Monday, 25th Day of September 2017 at 11.30 hours to transact the
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2017,
Statement of Income and the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March
2017 together with the Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under
Section 143 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Reports of the Directors and
the Auditors there on.

2. To fix remuneration of Auditors for the Financial Year 2017-18 and If thought fit, to pass

with or without modifications, the following resolution as an ordinary Resolution:-
“RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to
fix the remuneration, out of pocket expenses, statutory taxes and other ancillary expenses
of Statutory Auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India for the
Financial Year 2017-18",

By Order of the Board of Directors
Place : Chennai

Date : 18-08-2017

Company Secretary

MNotes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to
attend and vote instead of himself and such proxy need not be a member of the
company.

2. The instrument of Proxy, in order to be effective should reach the Registered Office of the
Company at least 48 hours before the time fixed for the meeting.

By Order of the Board,
Place : Chennai for Chennai Metro Rail Limited

Date : 18-08-2017

Company Secretary

15



CHAIRMAN's MESSAGE

Dear Shareholders,

It is my privilege to present to you the 10th Annual Report of your Company for the Financial Year
2016-17. The audited financial statements, the Board’s Report and the Auditor’s Report may be
taken asread. Your Company has adopted the Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) in preparation
of the financial statements belng mandatory to comply from 01-04-2016.

| take this opportunity to place on record the valuable contributions of Shri Rajiv Gauba, 1AS during
his tenure as chairman in the organisation. | also welcome 5mt Uma R Krishnan and
Smt Usha Shankar, Independent Directors who have joined recently on the Board of CMRL.

The metro rail passenger service for Alrport to Little Mount stations was flagged
off on 21-09-2016 through video conferencing by the then Chief Minister of Tamil Nadu,
Selvi ) Jayalalithaa, Alrport, Meenambakkam, MNanganallur Road, Guindy, Little Mount and
St. Thomas Mount Metro stations were declared open on the same day. Thiru M Venkaiah Naidu,
the then Hon'ble Union Minister of Urban Development and Housing & Urban Poverty Alleviation,
Government of India and Thiru Pon Radhakrishnan, Hon'ble Minister of State for Road Transport
Highways and Shipping flagged off the Metro train from Airport Station. Out of 45 kms, the entire
Elevated Section of 20.4 kms has been commissioned and became operative since 21-09-2016.
Consequent to the opening of passenger services in the new sections during the year under
review, there is substantial increase in the revenue from operations.

The Underground section from Koyambedu to Nehru Park covering a distance of
7.36 Km has been commissioned by the Hon'ble Union Minister for Housing and
Urban Affairs Thiru M Venkaiah Naidu and the Hon'ble Chief Minister of Tamil Nadu,
Thiru Edappad| K Palaniswami on 14-05-2017. The seven underground stations covering the
stretch have become operational on the same day.

Works -are in progress for the Phase = | Extension of Chennai Metro Rail Project from
Washermenpet to Wimeo Nagar covering a distance of 9.051 Km at a total project cost of
Rs3770Crand itis expected to be completed in 2019,

| am happy to share with you that your Company has recelved the prestigious "Platinum” rating by
the Indian Green Building Council (IGBC) for adopting green concepts in the design, construction
and operation of metro rail during lanuary 2017 in respect of all the thirteen Elevated Stations of
the Phase-l. In addition to the accomplishment, four Underground Stations of Corridor — 2 have
also been rated “Platinum” by IGBC during September 2017.

It is noteworthy to mention about the novel initiatives taken by your Company, which includes,
adoption of Alternate Fuel Vehicles, Heat Island Mitigation, Implementation of Energy Monitaring
System (EMS) at all stations, utilization of 3 Unigue Portable Compressor System, undertaking
compensatory planting works through MIYAWAK! technique. Your Company has already
commissioned 1 Megawatt Solar Roof top on Rolling Stock maintenance shed.
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As you are aware, your Company is committed to the high standards of Carporate Governance and
responsibility. Your Company has a Fraud Prevention Policy and Whistle Blower Policy to deal with
instances of fraud and mismanagement, if any.

All the achievements have been primarily possible because of dedicated efforts, demonstration of
commitment and trust reposed by the employees in the Company. The engineering and
technological excellence achieved by your Company and the right business strategies adopted by
it have well positioned the Company to meet the demand of the Chennai commuters and
commission the projectin time.

I would like to sincerely acknowledge the guidance and valuable support of the Board of Directors
in taking CMRL to higher altitudes of accomplishments.

| would like to thank the Government of India, Government of Tamil Nadu, Japan International
Co-operation Agency (JICA), the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (CAG) and all the public
authorities / agencies for the constant support to your Company.

| seek your continued and valuable support in taking your Company to greater and newer helghts
in coming years too.

Durga Shanker Mishra, IAS
Chairman,
Chennal Metro Rail Limited




DIRECTORS' REPORT

Your Board of Directors are pleased to present the Company’s 10th Annual Report along
with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2017 and
comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, under Section 143({6) of the
Compames Act, 2013.

Financial Highlights
During the year under review, the total revenue generated from operations and other income was
Rs. 133,95 Cr against a revenue figure of Rs. 128,76 Cr. for the year 2015-16. The total expenditure

incurred in the year 2016-17 was Rs. 227.89 Cr resulting in a loss of Rs. 93.94 Cr. After adjustment
of deferred tax of Rs. 109.47 Cr, a loss amounting to Rs. 203.41 Crwas incurred during the year.

Rs. 21.26 Cr was earned as revenue from operations and Rs. 112.69 Cr was earned as other
income, totaling to Rs. 133.95 Cr during the year against which an expenditure of Rs. 118,96 Cr was
incurred, excluding depreciation, leaving an operational gain of Rs. 14.99 Cr. As compared to
previous year, the income has increased from Rs. 128.76 Cr to Rs. 133.95 Cr. Revenue from
operations has Increased from Rs. 13.11 Cr to Rs. 21.26 Cr showing a 62% Increase over last year.
During the year, the ridership was 39.87 lakh, compared to 31.90 lakh of previous year recording a
hike of about 25 %.

As on 31-03-2017, paid up equity capital of the Company was Rs. 3901.07 Cr. An Advance Share
Application Money of Rs. 93.15 Cr received from the Government of India and Rs, 432.56 Cr
recelved from the Government of Tamil Nadu is available as Share Application money pending
allotment ason 31st March 2017.

Further during the year, Subordinate Debt of Rs. 180 Cr was received from Government of India
and Rs. 500 Cr from Government of Tamil Nadu towards phase | of the project.

Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA) loan amounting to Rs. 980 Cr was received during
the year through Government of India in the form of Pass Through Assistance.




Project Highlights

The company is in the process of implementing about 54 km Metro Network in the city across two
Corridors.

Details of Corridors in Phase | and Phase | Extension

Details | Phasel-Corridorl | Phase |l-Corridor 2 | Phase | Extension | Total
| Washarmanpet 1o Central 1o Waoshermanpet 1o
| Alrport 51, Thomas Mount Wimco Nagar
Under ground length | 14.54 Km 0.95 Km 2.3T79 Km 26.463 Km
Elevated length I BE2ZKm I - 11615Km 6.672 Km I 27307 Km
Total length i 2296 Km 21565 Km 9,051 Km | 53576Km
Linder ground statlons | Washermanpet, Egmore Metro, Sir Thyagaraja Callege, 21 5tations
Mannadi, High Caurt, MNehru Park, Korukkupet,
Central Metro, Kilpauk (KMC), (2 Stations)
Govt, Estate, Pachaiyappa's College,
UC, Thousand Lights, Shenoy Magar,
AG-DMS, Toynam pet, Annanagar East,
Nandaman and Annanagar Tower and
Saldapet Matro. Thirumangalam,
| iustations) | (8 Stations) o I
Elevated stations Litthe Mount, | 5t. Thomas Mt., Tondiarpet, | 18 5Statlons
Guindy Metro, Alandur, Ekkatthangal, Thangal, Toll gate,
Manganallur Road, | Ashok Negar, Vadapadond, Gowri Ashram,
Meenambakkam Metro, | Arumbakkam, CMET, Thirueottiyur,
Airport. Koyambedi Wimca Nagar.
|& Stations) (7 Stations) (& Stations}
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10th Annual report 2016-17

Key Achievement During 2016-17

Hon’ble Chief Minister of Tamil Nadu, Puratchi Thalaivi Selvi ] Jayalalithaa
laid foundation stone for the Phase | extension of Chennai Metrorall project from
Washermanpet to Wimconagar of 9.051 KM on 23.07.2016
The total cost of the project is Rs 3770 Cr,

The project is expected to be completed by Middle of 2019,
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Hon'ble Chief Minister of Tamil Nadu, Puratchi Thalaivil Selvi J Jayalalithaa
inaugurated the Airport - Little mount metro rall passenger service
by flagging off and declared open the metro rail stations at
Airport, Meenambakkam, Nanganallur road, Guindy, Little Mount,
5t Thomas Mount through Video Conferencing on 21-09-2016 at Secretariat, Chennal,

This forms Corridor | of the elevated sector of Phase | of the project
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Thiru M Venkaiah Naidu, Hon'ble Union Minister of Housing and Urban Poverty
Alleviation, Urban Development and Information & Broadcasting and
Thiru Pon Radhakrishnan, Hon'ble Minister of State for Road Transport Highways &
Shipping flagged off the Metro train from Airport Station.

Rooftop Solar PV system of 1 MW was commissioned in Rolling stock Shed in Koyambedu
Depot in the first week of December 2016, under Green energy initiative.,

The system is expected to produce 3500 units per day
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AWARDS AND ACCOLADES TO CMRL'S CREDIT

The India Green Building Council (IGBC), part of the Confederation of indian
Industries (CH), which has launched the IGBC Green Building Rating System has awarded
Platinum rating, the highest certification level to the 13 elevated stations of Phase |,

To facilitate transfers from Airport Metro station to Airport terminals, battery operated
shuttle service was launched.

CMRL initiated bicycle facilities for metro passengers at SIDCO station.

As a measure to propagate green Initiative, CMRL declared that the electric and hybrid
two and four wheelers are exempt from parking fees at Metro stations.

As a measure of publicity to metro travel, CMRL conducted Food Carnival at Vadapalani metro
station, arranged Selfie Spot, Children play areas and Magic show to add attractions.

CMRL arranged for Metronival 16 at Vadapalani Metro station wherein drawing and painting
competitions were conducted for children.

Metro services are extended accordingly to meet the demands of the public, especially during
the festival seasons.

State Bank of India has issued Combo Cards which may be used as ATM cards as well as Metro
Rail card.
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Financial Highlights for the year 2016-17

{Figures in INR Crore)
Details Pattern of Funding Total funds received Total expenses
up to 31-03-2017 As on 31-03-2017
Equity
G0 2,150.00 1,923.19 1,747.06
Addl Equity GOI - 26,74
GOTN 2,190.00 2,150.00 1,747.06
Addl Equity GOTN . 193.09
Subordinate Debt - -
GO 730.00 537.22 454,26
GOTN B44.00 194232 1,676.56
Grant - TNVAT
GoTN 140.15 228.83
Senkor term debt -
GOl PTA 8,6465.00 7,988.41 8,254.36
Total 14,600,008 14,941.62 14,108.13
01 2,920.00 248775 220132
GOTN 3,034,00 4,465.45 3,652.45
PTA 8,646.00 7.988.41 B.254.36
Other : 225.04 50664
Net Balance / Amount 14,600.00 | 15,166.66 14,614.77

Revised project cost amounts to Rs.19,058 Crs, The revised project cost has been approved by

GoTN. Gol approval |s awalted. The project cost does not include TNVAT,

Financial Highlights for the year 2016-17
Phase-1 Extension

{Figures in INR Crore)
Details Pattern of Total funds received Total expenses
Funding up to 31-03-2017 As on 31-03-2017
Equity
GOl 508.00 93.15 9975
GOTH S08.00 . 9575
Subordinate Debt -
GOl 205.00
GOTH-Land 203.00 246.02
GoTN-Tawes 20500
Senior term debt
GOI PTA 2,141,00 - -
Total 3,770.00 83.15 445.52
GOl 713.00 93.15 99.75
GOTN 916.00 - 345,77
FT& 2,141.00 . -
Net Balance / Amount 3,770.00 93,18 445,52
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Financial Highlights for the year 2016-17

Pattern of funding

B

\

Total Funds received Total Expenses
upto 31.03,2017 As on 31.03.2017
Q ' B
3,652.45
GOTH
4,59 .50

Pattern of funding for Phase 1 Extension

b
71300

GOTH
526.00
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Audited Statement of Accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2017
is Annexed

PROJECT CONSTRAINTS OTHER INFORMATION

In elevated corridor, spread over a length of around 22 Km, the poor performance and subsequent
termination of three packages pertaining to M/fs CCCL and one package pertaining to M/s Lanco
affected the progress of the work by 2 to 2.5 years.

The balance works are now completed by calling for fresh tenders. 10 Kms of this stretch was
opened between Koyembedu to Alandur in June 2015 and the balance stretch between Airport
and Little Mount and between Alandur and 5t. Thomas Mount were opened in September 2016,
Funds wise, there has been no constraint so far. Almost 60% of the funds for the project are borne
by way of loan from JICA and there has been no Issue regarding reimbursement and release of PTA
by Govt. of India.

The original cost of the project is Rs14,600 Cr and the revised cost is Rs 19,058 Cr. This has been
approved by the Govt. of Tamil Nadu, the sanction of Govt. of India is awaited.

New Contracts Awarded

The Contract Package UAA-03 for balance works was awarded to M/s. L&T in December 2015. In
respect of balance works of Contract Package UAA-02 - Tunnel, the new contract BW-UG-
02(Tunnels) has been awarded to M/s. Afcons Infrastructure Ltd in May 2016, the award of new
Contract for UAA-02 (Stations) was made to M/s Larsen & Toubro Ltd in August 2016,

Phase | Extension

The project of phase | extension between Washermanpet and Wimco Nagar covering
a distance of 9.051 Km has been approved at a total cost of Rs 3770 Cr. This phase comprises
of & elevated stations in a stretch of 6,672 Km and 2 in an underground stretch of 2.379 Km.
Foundation stone for the project was laid on 23-07-2016 by the Honorable Chief Minister
of Tamil Nadu and the project is expected to be commissioned by mid 2019

PLANNING B BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

With effect from January 2016, the Management of CMRL strategically integrated the Planning
and Business Development departments in order to take advantage of the composite skill sets
available within the organization.

As part of non-fare initiatives, CMRL has entered into contracts with a number of parties for
licensing the spare available spaces within the Metro Stations with a view to value capture,
enhancing the ambience and create amenities for the commuting passengers. The spaces are
presently being used for operating ATMs, COMs, F&B kiosks, Fast food outlets, Retail etc. Further
spaces within the stations and Metro trains have also been licensed for the purpose of commercial
advertisements. In order to enhance the telecom coverage and reach within the Metro stations,
licenses have also been awarded to leading telecom infrastructure companies. Action has also



been initiated for licensing of spaces on piers and portals along the elevated sections for the
purpose of commercial advertisements.

Apart from the above, Initiatives have also been taken to identify and dewvelop integrated
commercial and Retall developments on spare parcels of lands. These long gestation projects are
at present, in various stages of planning approvals from city authorities.
The earnings from Business Development activities is Rs.7.44 Cr. in 2016-17.
As a part of planning related activities, the following comprehensive and detailed studies have
been completed. These studies and documents form the basis for implementation of the projects
onground.
Master Plan for Metroin CMA.
Fare fixation study,
Multimodal integration studies.
Detailed Project Report for CMRL Phase-Il,

5. FeederBusstrategies and Implementation.
Further, the following detailed studies are in progress;

1. Extension of Corridor 4 of CMRL Phase-Il.

2. Merger of MRTS (Southern Railways) with CMRL.

3. Clean Development Mechanism to avall carbon credits.

4. City Development [Transport infrastructure improvement projects - Kathipara

Multimodal Urban Square, Central Square etc.,
5. Preparation of DFR/DPR for Coimbatore Mass Transit.

SAFETY & SECURITY

Training for out sourced security personnel was held at Alandur station on 07.04.2016.
54 personnel took part in it, Frisking and baggage scanning were demonstrated.
The programme was held for 2 days. Police officer of security branch, CID and TN Police were
involved. The programme also covered the training for 35 number of house keeping personnel.
Maock drill for Fire preparedness was conducted in the Depot Admin Bullding on 30.04.2016. Fire
unit from TNFRS also took part in the drill,

Metro intervention training programme was conducted by the National Security Guards
at Alandur and Airport Metro Stations In October 2016 and January 2017 respectively.
Major Anuj Kumar and NSG commandos of Anti-terrorist attack. NSG demonstrated the method to
release the hostages from terrorists. Bomb squad demonstrated the technique of tracing and
defusing the hidden bombs. Dog squad demaonstrated the technique to identify the fire arms and
bombs hidden by the terrorists. The programme was coordinated by the Chief Security Officer
(CSO) of CMRL.
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Mock evacuation drill was conducted in the underground tunnel between Annanagar Tower and
Annanagar East stations. Train was stopped in the middle and emergency situation was simulated
using cold smoke in the tunnel, Tunnel Ventilation system was activated to clear smoke. Once the
visibility was clear, evacuation procedure was performed to walk ways and cross passages.

Go Green initiative

Workshop on Go Green Concept was conducted on 22.04.2016 as a part of World Earth Day
Celebrations. Work shop was conducted by Shri P Thangavelu, former Addl. Director, Horticultural
department of Tamil Nadu. The work shop emphasized on the importance of
go green concept and several initiatives like terrace garden etc.

FIXED DEPOSITS
The Company has not invited deposits from Public under Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee presently comprises of the following Directors:

1. ShriKShanmugam - Chairman of the Committee
2. SmtUmaR Krishnan - Member
3. SmtUshaSankar - Member

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the Financial Year 2016-17, the Board of Directors had 4 Board Meetings and
9 Board Sub-Committee Meetings.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES

In accordance with Section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013, during the Financial Year 2016-17, the
Board of Directors had 4 Board Meetings and 9 Board Sub-Committee Meetings.
The details of these meetings are as follows:

Description No of Dates of
_— Meetings|  Meetings
Board 4 23-08-2016, 31-10-2016, 27-12-2016, 30-03-2017
Audit Committee 1 01-08-2016
. Nomination &
Rermuneration Committee 3 09-06-2016, 24-10-2016, 09-03-2017.
D&M Committee 1 24-08-2016
Project Management
Review Committee 3 17-05-2016, 09-06-2016, 29-12-2016.
Property Development
Committee 1 24-08-2016

. -



The following changes among the Directors took place during the year:
Shri Durga Shanker Mishra IAS was appointed as Chairman with effect from 23-08-2017,
in place of Shri Rajiv Gauba, IAS.

Dr D Karthikeyan, 1AS was appointed in the place of Shri B. Chandramohan, 1AS with effect from 04-
07-2016.

Smt. Uma R Krishnan was appointed as Independent Director w.e.f. 31-10-2016 on the Board of
Chennai Metro Rail Limited.

Smt Usha Sankar, was appointed as an Independent Director w.e.f. 31-10-2016 on the Board of
Chennal Metro Rail Limited,

The Board of Directors welcomes the new Directors on the Board

STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India, New Delhi, has appointed M/s Vardhaman & Co.,
Chartered Accountants, Chennai, as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year
2015-16, who continue for the year 2016-17 also the same has been approved by the Board of
Directors.

SECRETARIALAUDIT

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9(1) of the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, M/s. Balakumar J &
Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, are appointed as the Secretarial Auditor of the
Company for the FY 2016-17.

STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

= i LE QTR TS ST IR AT O d = LTI T E ALLLHUTILS )

The company has chosen to adopt Regenerative braking technology for Rolling Stock with focus on
energy savings during operation. The Company also chose to adopt Platform Screen Doorsinall 19
Underground stations, despite its higher cost, taking into account reduction in energy
consumption for Air-conditioning and consequent substantial reduction in Greenhouse
emissions. Installation of LED lights in Under Ground Stations at higher cost with reduced
consumption has also been initiated.

The Company has installed roof top solar panels at Depot for the generation of solar electrical
energy as a greenhouse initiative. The company has taken steps to expand the project to all
elevated metro stations.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

Rs. in Crores
| 1. | Total Foreign Exchange Earned Nil (Prev.Year- Nil)
L 2] Tutal Fure]gn Em:hange 1_..|sed EEE#B {FrE!.r _‘fﬂ_’gg P 3l]4??]

DIHECTDHS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Whilst preparing the Annual Accounts the Company has adhered to the following
best practices and your directors confirm the same pursuant to Section 134 (5) of
the Companies Act, 2013:
1) In the preparation of accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures.

2) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provision of the Companies Act, 2013
for safe guarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and otherirregularities;

3) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis,

4) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliances with the provisions
of all applicable laws and the systems were adequate and operating effectively.

EXTRACT OF ANNUALRETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014, the extract of the annual return as on
31-03-2017 in Form MGT 9is placed as ANNEXURE.

AUDITORS' REPORT

The observations of the Statutory Auditors in their report, as placed in ANNEXURE, read with the
relevant notes to accounts are self-explanatory and do not require further explanation.
SECRETARIALAUDIT REPORT

The observations of the Statutory Auditors in their report, as placed in ANNEXURE, read with the
relevant notes to accounts are self-explanatory.

COMMENTS OF THE BOARD

Due to unavoidable circumstances, the 47th Board meeting scheduled to be held during
June 2016 had been postponed and held on 23rd August, 2016.




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Your Company has complied with the requirements of various Corporate Laws. Though the
Company is not a listed Company, as a measure of best practice, your Directors are happy
to place a “Corporate Governance Report” at ANNEXURE.

VIGILMECHANISM AND WHISTLE BOWLER POLICY

The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to
key business objectives. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically
addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis. These are discussed at the meetings
of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company.

The Company has a Fraud Prevention Policy and Whistle Bowler Pelicy published in
the website of the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As the company has not entered into any contracts or arrangements with related parties referred
to in section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the form ADC-2 as required in
the Rule 8{2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is not placed in the Board’s Report,

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Board constituted a CSR Committee in its meeting held on 20-03-2015 pursuant to section 135
of the Companies Act, 2013. As on date, the C5R Committee consists of the following members:

Chairman Managing Director, CMRL
Member IJIre:tnr{_Fina nce), CMRL
Member Director (Projects), CMRL
Member Director (S&0), CMRL
Member Independent Director
Member Independent Director

During the period under review, the Company is in the project phase and there has not been
operating profits since commencement of operations and during the previous years. Since there
was no operational income, no amount has been spent towards CSR activities as required under
Section 135.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CMRL is pursuing sustainable business practices and creating value for all its stakeholders,
To attain this objective, the Company Is Inculcating a value system that incorporates integrity,
transparency and fairness across all its business activities. It has adopted best practices towards
preserving envircnment and implementing income assurance programme for Project Affected
Families as a model to the corporate world. CMRL is voluntarily practicing the sound principles of
Corporate Governance as a responsible corporate citizen.

1.BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As per the Articles of Association of the Company, strength of the Board shall not be less than
3 Directors and not more than 16 Directors and they may be either Nominee Directors, or whole-
time functional Directors or Part-time Directors.

Constitution of the Board

CMRL is a Government Company within the meaning of Section 2(45) of the Companies Act, 2013,
Presently, 50% of the total issued share capital is held by Government of India and
the other 50% by Government of Tamil Nadu. Both the Governments have the right to nominate
five Directors each on the Board. The Directors so appointed either ex-officio in nature or by name.

Besides this, the Government of India has the right to appoint the Chairman amongst their
nominees. Accordingly, the Secretary (Urban Development), Government of India is the
ex-officio Chairman of the company. The Government of Tamil Nadu has the right to nominate the
Managing Director amongst their nominees who is appointed by the Board of Directors with prior
concurrence of Government of India.

Composition of the Board

As on March 31, 2017, the Company has 15 Directors on the Board of which Government of India
nominated five, Government of Tamil Nadu nominated five Directors including the Managing
Director. The said nominee directors are Senior Officials of the Government of India and
Government of Tamil Nadu having considerable experience and expertise across a range of
disciplines, including general management, construction, project management, design, business
strategy, finance etc. Apart from the nominee Directors, the Board has appointed two
independent Directors, experts in the fields of Finance and General Management.

1.1 Responsibilities

The company's Board of Directors are responsible for and are committed to setting standards of
conduct at all levels, They are also committed to update these standards, as appropriate, to ensure
their continuing relevance, effectiveness and responsiveness to the needs of the stakeholders
with social objectives as also to reflect corporate, legal and regulatory developments. The Board
ensures that the Company has clear goals and policies for achieving these goals. The Board
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approved a set of guiding principles for the company In the form of Vision, Mission and Core
Values, The Board oversees the Company's strategic directions, reviews corporate performance,
authorizes and monitors strategic decisions, ensures regulatory compliance, safeguards interests
of shareholders and Social commitments.

1.2 Board / Committee Meetings and Procedures

a) Institutionalized decision making process:
With a view to institutionalising all corporate governance and setting up systems and procedures
for advance planning for matters requiring discussion and decision by the Board in an informed

and efficient manner, the Company has well defined procedures for meetings of the Board of
Directors and Committees thereof.

b) Scheduling and selection of Agenda items for Board / Committee Meetings:

i) The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss, review and decide on the progress of the
project [ strategy of the Company apart from other Board business. The Board / Committee
meetings are convened by giving appropriate notice after obtaining approval of the Chairman of
the Board. Detailed agenda, management information reports and other explanatory statements
are circulated in advance amongst the members on important matters to ensure and facilitate
meaningful participation in the meetings. However, in case of special and urgent business needs,
the Board's approval is taken by passing resolutions by circulation, as parmitted by law, which will
be confirmed In the next meeting. To address specific urgent needs, meetings at times, are also
being called at shorter notice,

if} The agenda for Board / Committee Meetings is circulated by the Company Secretary in
consultation with the Chairman and the Managing Director of the Company. The Agenda for the
Board and Committee Meetings includes detailed notes on the items to be discussed at
the meeting are prepared by Head of the Departments and submitted to concerned Functional
Directors for obtaining their approval before being cleared by Managing Director.
Agenda notes normally classified as follows:-

a. Regularagendaitems
I. GrantofLeave of Absence
il. Confirmationof the Minutes of the previous Board meeting
ili. Actiontakenreportonthe Minutes of the previous/earlier meetings
iv. Progress Report of the Project
b. Agenda ltems forapproval of the Board
€. Agendaitemsforinformation of the Board
ili} Duly approved Agenda notes are circulated in advance to enable Directors to take an informed
decision,



iv) Where it is not desirable to attach any document or if the agenda is of a sensitive nature, the
same is placed on the table at the meeting with the approval of the Managing Director. In special
and exceptional circumstances, additional or supplementary item(s) on the agenda are taken up
for discussion with permission of the Chair of the Board.

v) The meetings are usually held either at the Company’s Registered Office or at the Conference
Hall at Secretariat, Fort. 5t George, Chennai 600 009 or at The Office of the Chairman and Secretary
(UD), Ministry of Urban Development, New Delhi. During the financial year, ended 31st March
2017, 4 Board meetings and 3 Committee Meetings were held.

vi) Atthe request of the directors, meeting are also conducted through video conferencing mode,
wherever permitted by the Companies Act, 2013,

vil) The Members of the Board have complete access to all information of the Company.

¢) Briefing by the Managing Director / Director

At every meeting of the Board, the progress report of the project, key developments including
status of the project and other important achievements / developments relating to the Company
in various areas will be placed as one of the regular Agenda and the same be briefed and make
presentation by the Managing Director / Directors to the Board Members. Members of Top
Management, General Consultants and Experts are also called in to brief the board and make
presentation wherever required.

d) Recording of minutes of proceedings at the Board Meeting

Minutes of the proceedings of each Board Meeting are recorded. The minutes of the proceedings
are entered in the Minutes Book. The minutes of each Board Meeting are submitted for
confirmation at its next meeting after these are approved by the Chairman,

The minutes of committees of the Board are also placed before the Board of Directors for their
information.

e) Post Meeting follow-up mechanism

The Guidelines for Board and Committee meetings facilitate an effective post meeting follow-up,
review and reporting process for the decisions taken by the Board and committees thereof, Action
taken report on the decision [/ minutes of the previous meeting (s) is placed at
the immediately succeeding meeting of the Board / Committee for noting by the Board /
Committee.

f)] Compliance

Every Functional Director/Head of the Department while preparing agenda notes ensures
adherence to all the applicable provisions of law, rules, guidelines, etc. The Company Secretary
ensures compliance of all applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and other statutory
requirements.

&



During the financial year 2016-17, Four Board Meetings were held on 23-08-2016,
31-10-2016, 27-12-2016and 30-03-2017.

Details of designation, number of Board meetings attended, attendance at last AGM are given

here under
Board Meetings Attendance Mo .af
si o heid during | N,0fB09M | aAGw ) EGM Membership
Mo, respictive tenures :tund:‘d [No. of AGM- 1 & I the
of Directors No. of EGN- 0] Committess
1. | ShriRajiv Gauba, IAS 4 3 .
2 Shirl Pankaj Kumar Bansal, LAS 4 4 AGM - Present 5 (THI 30-10-2016)
4 [From 31-10-2015)
3. Shr| Sharat Sharma 4 4 i
i, Shri Mukund Kumar Sinha i 1 (Tl 30-10-2016)
0 (From 31-10-2016)
5 Shri Praveen Goyal 4 3 2
6. | ShrikX Aggarwal 4 2 1
LA Shri K Shanmugam, IAS 4 z 1
B. Shri S Krishnan, 1AS i 3 3 [Tl 30-10-2016)

2 (From 31-10-2016)
1

a, Shri Rajeey Ranjan, IAS

10. | Dr D Karthikeyan, [AS 4 1 1

11, | ShriL Narasim Prasad 4 4 AGM - Present 5 [Till 30-10-2018}
4 (From 31-10-2016)

12. | Shrl Rajeev Marayan Dwived| 3 4 AGM - Present | 5(Til 30-10-2016)
4 [From 31-10-2016)

13, | Smt Sujatha layaraj 4 4 AGM - Present | 5 (Till 30-10-2016)
4 (From 31-10-2016)

14, | Smi. Uma R Krishnan 2 1 3 (From 31-10-2016)

15, | Smt. Usha Sankar 2 2 3 {From 31-10-2016)

1.3 Information placed before the Board of Directors:

The Board of Directors delegated the powers to the Managing Director on all routine matters to
manage the day-to-day affairs of the company and certain financial powers with a ceiling. In order
to enable speedy decision making, the day to day operation of the company and also to delegate
the responsibility to the senior management team, Schedule of Powers [{SOP) has been prepared
and the same has been approved and circulated. Matters, which are beyond the delegated
powers, are being brought before the Board and the same inter alia includes the following:

< Annual budget/s and cash flow statement/s

%+ Annual accounts, Directors’ Report etc,

%+ Minutes of meetings of all Committees of the Board
L]

All proposals which involve change in technology / technology parameters other than
contemplated in DPR
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Progress report on Project Implementation
Award of large contracts

Status of pending legal cases
Compliance Certificate of Statutory provisions
Other materially important information

2. COMMITTEES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board has established the following Committees

i, Audit Committee
il. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

fii. O & M Committee

iv. Project Management Review Committee

v. Property Development Committee

vi. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

vil. Investment Committee

Theterms of reference (TOR) of the above Committees are as follows;
a) Audit Committee

b

2)
3

4)
5)
6]
7]

8)
9]

To review the quarterly and annual financial statements before submission to the
Board

Toensure compliance of Internal Control Systems

To have periodical discussions with auditors about internal control systems,
the scope of audit including the observations of the auditors.

Recommendation to the Board the fixation of audit fees.
Reviewing performance of internal auditors.
Reviewing adequacy of the internal control systems.

Discussion with internal auditors and/or auditors any significant findings,
management response on findings and follow up.

Toreview the follow up action on the audit observations of the CEAG audit.

Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required,
the replacement or removal of the statutory auditor and the fixation of audit fees.

10) Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the

statutory auditors.

11) Any other matter as may be referred by the Board or any other function as

mandated under Company Law.



d)

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

1) Toreview the manpower requirement for the company.

2) Toreview and recommend the Remuneration policy for the company:.
3) Toreviewthe HR Policy and proposing any amendments.
4) Training & Development Palicy.

5] Disciplinary matters as per the HR Manual.

B) Anyother matter as may be referred by the Board.

D&M Committee

1) Review preparatory study for O&M.

2) Review clearances from CMRS and other Statutory Bodies.
3) Review documentation to be submitted to CMRS.

4) Review of manpower requirement for O&M activities.

5) Review Income & expenditure due to revenue operations and recommend ways to
improve profitability.

&) Anyother matter as may be referred by the Board.
Project Management Review Committee

1) Review the Project Cost periodically and determine the cost escalation and make
suitable recommendations to Board.

2) Review Risk Management strategy for the Company.
3) Review any procurement cases referred to it by the Board.

4) Review Extension of Time for contract Packages, if referred by the Board, and
recommendations to the Board for approval.

5) Review/referring of Issuesto Arbitration,

6) Anyother matter as may be referred by the Board.

Property Development Committee

1) Toidentify the property development {PD) projects.

2} Toidentify the impediments responsible for delaying the PD projects.
3) Tosuggestmeasure forincreasing revenue from PD projects.

4) Anyother matter as may be referred by the Board.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

1) The committee shall formulate and recommend to the board, a Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by the

company as specified in schedule VI,



2) The committee shall recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the
activities referred to In the CSR Policy of the company.
3} Thecommittee shall monitor the CSR policy of the company from time to time.
g} Investment Committee
1) Toconsider and approve investment of project funds of the Company.
2} Toreview the Investment Policy and suggest modifications.
3} Anyother matter as may be referred by the Board.

The Managing Director is the Chairman of all the Committees except Audit Committee Nomination
& Renumeration Committee and the Company Secretary is the Convenor of all the Committees.

2.1 AUDITCOMMITTEE

The constitution, quorum, scope etc. of the Audit Committee is in line with the provisions of
Companies Act, 2013. All the members of Audit Committee are qualified who have insight to
interpret and understand financial statements.

2,2 Constitution

The Board, in its 3rd meeting held on 30th June 2008, constituted an Audit Committee
in compliance with provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 which was re constituted on
28th January 2014 in the 28th Board Meeting.

As per section 177(2) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Audit Committee shall consist of minimum
of three directors with independent directors forming majority. It is also specified in the third
proviso to this section, that every audit committee of a company existing immediately before the
commencement of the act, shall within one year of such commencement, shall be reconstituted in
accordance with sub-section (2). The Audit Committee in accordance with the above provisions of
Companies Act 2013, was reconstituted in the 48th Board Meeting held on 31-10-2016.

As on date of Directors’ Report, the Audit Committee consists of the following members;

1. ShrikKShanmugam - Chairmanof the Committee
2. Smt Uma R Krishnan - Member
3. SmtUshaSankar - Member

Shri S Krishnan, Principal Secretary, PD&S| Dept, Go TN and Shri Mukund Kumar Sinha, Officer on
Special Duty and loint Secretary, MoUD are permanent invitees. Managing Director, Director
(Finance), Statutory Auditors and the Internal Auditors are also invited to the
Audit Committee Meetings, but they have no right to vote.

Quorum for the Audit Committee |5 1/3rd of the total members (three members) or
2 whichever is higher. The Company Secretary Is the Secretary to the Audit Committee,



2.3 Scopeof Audit Committee

The Audit Committee to have discussions with the auditors periodically about internal control
systems, the scope of audit including the observations of the auditors and review of half yearly and
annual financial statements before submission to the Board and also to ensure compliance of
internal control systems.

The Audlt Committee shall have authority to investigate into any matter in relation to the items
specified under the Companies Act or as may be referred to it by the Board and for this purpose,
shall have full access to information contained In the records of the Company and external
professional advice, if necessary,

The Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall attend the Annual General Meetings of the
Company to provide any clarification on matters relating to audit.

2.4  Meetingsand attendance
1. Meeting of the Audit Committee meeting was held during the Financial Year.

| Directors Audit Committee Meetings No .of Audit
No. held during respective Committee Meeting
tenures of Directors attended
1 | Shri Mukund Kumar Sinha 1 1
2 Shri K Shanmugam 1 1
3 Shri S Krishnan 1 1
a4 Smt Uma R Krishnan 0 0
5 | Smt Usha Sankar o 0

Annual General Meeting
Date, time and location where the 9th Annual General Meeting was held, s as under

 Date andtime 23rd Septemherlﬂlﬁ at1130 hnurs
Venue Registered office of the l:nrl'lpan'y' at Koyambedu, Chennai
Specified Resolution (s)passed | Ordinary Resolution:

+ Approval of Accounts, Directors’ Report and
Auditors’ Report

*  Fixing the remuneration of the Auditors of the
company for the financial year 2016-17

Special Resolution:

¢+ To increase the borrowing powers of the company to
Rs. 16,130 Crore.

+  Appointment of Smt Sujatha layaraj as Director
(Finance) of the Company.

« Appointment of Shri Rajeev Narayan Dwivedl as
Director [Projects) of the Company.

&




COMPANY'S WEBSITE

The company’'s website is www.chennaimetrorail.org. All major information pertaining
to Company including project, contracts, job, recruitment process and results etc. are
given on the website. The Company has also created a Facebook page:
www.facebook.com/chennaimetrorail to update public on a dally basis on progress achieved,

Registered Office:
Chennai Metro Rail Limited
CMRL Depot, Admin Building,
Poonamallee High Road, Koyambedu, Chennai - 600 107




ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

S.No. Particulars Remarks
: A bref Outine of the company’s CSR Policy, cluding During the perod under review the CSR policy is nol
overview of the projects or programs proposed 10 be formulabed
underaken and a reference to the website link o the
CSR Policy and projacts or programs:
2 The Composition of the TSR commilties ; Shri Pankaj Kumar Bansal Chairman
Members.:
Shri L Narasém Prasad - Dir (S80)
Smt Sujatha Jayaraj - Dir {Fin)
Shri Rajoey Narayan Dwiveds - Dir (P)
Smi. Uma R Krishnan - indepandent Dir
Smi. Usha Sankar - Indepandant Dir
3 Aoverage ned prodit of ths company for the last threa Snancial
Yaars- Operational profits
4, me;:udﬁﬂﬁmwﬂwniﬁﬂﬂummaﬁhﬂama
abova
5. Dretaits of the CER spant during the Financial Year.
. Tolal amosnl bo B spanl forihe inancial Year
b. Amountunspend (i any) NIL
€. Mannes in which amouni spont during the financial
vaar is detailed balow:
1 2 3 q 5 6 7 8
5.Mo | CS5R Project | Sector inwhich | Projectsor |  Amount Amount spent | Cumulative | Amount spent
or activities the project programs Dutlay on the projects| expenditure Direct or
identified is covered {budget) OF programs up tothe through
Program or sub heads: reporiing implementing
project - wise period agency*
1
2 HiL
3
Total

*Give Details of the implementing Agency

CHAIRMAN OF THE CSR COMMITTEE




FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2017

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1. CIN UB0100TNZ0075GC065596
2. | Registration Date 03-12-2007
3, Name of the Company Chennai Metro Rail Limited
4, Category / Sub-category of the Company Government Company
5. | Address of the Registered office & CHENMAI METRO RAIL LIMITED,
contact details Administration Building,
Chennal Metro Rail Depot,
Poonamalle High Road,
Chennai- 600 107
Telephone No. : 044 2379 2000
E-mail id: chennaimetrorail@gmail.com
Website: www.chennaimetrorail.org
6. | Whether listed company Unlisted Company
7. Name, Address & contact details of the
Hegistrar &Irj:ﬂs.fer ﬁ.gelnt. if any. NA

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE EDMFAH‘I"
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be
stated:-

S.No. | Name and Description of NIC Code of the % to total turnover of
main products / services Product/service the company

Ill. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be

stated:-
S.No. | Name and Description of NIC Code of the % to total turnover of
main products / services Product/service the company
NOT APPLICABLE |




IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN

(Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

A) Category-wise Share Holding

nfi?umm

Ma. of Shares held at the

beginning of the year [As an 31-March-2016)

No. of Shares held at the
and af the yeat (As an 31-March-2017)

remat

Physical

Total

% of Total

[remat

Physical

Total

% of Total

% Change
dufing the yest

A, |

(1) Indian
a}lnﬁﬂtul..l‘ HI.JF
b} Central Ewl
tl Et.utqﬁm[ll
d] Bodies Corp.
e} Banks / Fi

f) Any other

Total shareholding of

!I'NI'I:IH'I'P-I

B. Public 3han

Lll'llﬂtl.ﬂhlu-

i) Mutual Funds

b Banks / FI

&} Contral Govt

dj State Govi(s)

v} Venture Copitalfun

T} Insurance C

g Fils

h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

1} Others {specify]

Sub-total (B)(1):-

I.Hnn-lmﬂnlﬂnm

4] Badies Carp.

1) indian

il Dverseas

b} individuals.

1) Indlwidual

shareholders halding

nominal share capital

1.||:|1n Rs. 1 lakh

individuat

rizhalders halding
nominal share capital
in excess of Rs 1 lakh
c) Others (specity]
Non Resident ln:ﬂ.lm

m#m

I'-nui.p'l Hllln-nlh
l:1nrinu Members

'Ih.llu-

Foreign Bodies - D i
Sub-total (B){2k-
Total Public
Ehareholding
(B)=(R){1}e (B2}

..._._.._5,.3:_.

HHEEHE
19505345

39010690

T

19505345
1 a505345

30010690

MiL

39010690

S0%

?.EH]E-

100%

19505345

39010690

| 19505345

NIL

48




B) Shareholding of Promoter

Shareholding at the Shareholding the at the
beginning of the year end of the year ‘":"'““
5l Shareholder’s Name No.of | Noftowl | MofShares | pp of | sioftotal | %0f Shares | shareholding
Nal Shares Shares edged ! | Shares Sharey umriﬂ Mr
af the 10 tovia| af the ‘ta tatal
company ghanky Cormpary shares
1  Gowvt. of India & Nominees 19505345 | 50% * 19505345 50% - -
2 | Gowt, of Tamilnadu & Nominees | 19505345 | 50% - 19505345 50% - -
C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
Particulars No. of % of total Shares No. of % of total Shares
Shares of the company Shares of the company
_f.t the hBi;!lr'.l'lll'll_Ef thiH 39010690 100% JHE!‘M'E'IJ 100%
Date wise Increase [/ Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during the year;
Reasons for increase © Due to allotment | - - -
At the end of the year 39010650 100% 28010690 10
D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders :
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)
Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
For Each of the beginning of the year during the year
Top 10 Shareholders No.of | %oftotal Shares | No.of | % of total Shares
Shares of the company Shares of the company
At the beginning of the year -Ni- - .
Date wise Increase / Decrease [n Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the reasans
for Increase /decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer [
| et} dureat Mty nT el :
At the end of the year M- - -
E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
Shareholding of each Directors and beginning of the year during the year
each Key Managerial Personnel No.of | %oftotalShares | No.of | % of total Shares
Shares of the company Shares of the company
At the beginning of the year 330 0.00084% 330 0.00084%
Date wise Increase [/ Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the reasons
for Increase fdecrease (e.g. allotment / transfer [
bonus/ sweat equity etc): " . .
At the end of the year 330 0.0008:45% 330 0LO0084%

. -




V) INDEBTEDNESS - Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding /

accrued but not due for payment
fin Lakhs)
Secured Loans Unsecured Loans Deposits | Total indebtedness
encluding deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year . -
| i} Principal Amount 993688.10 9935688.10
i} Interest due but not paid 2333228 23332.28 |
iii] Interest accrued but not due 273 Ta2.73
Tatal [i+ii+Hi) 1017763.11 . 1017763.11
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year
* Addition 105274.52 105274.52
* Reductions
Met Change
indabtednass at the end of the
financial year
I} Principal Amount 10B8743.52 1088743.52
i) Interest due but not pald 3429411 3425411
iil] Interest accrwed but not due
Total [i+ii+Hi) - 1123037.63 1123037.63
VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL -
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager
{in Lakhs]
sM|  Particulars of Remuneration Name of MO/WTD/ Manager Am"m
Shri Panka | Smt. Sujatha Shri Rajeev | Shri L Marasim
Kumar layaraf, Narayan Dwivedi, Prasad
Bansal, MD | Director {Finance)| Director [Projects) | Director {S&0)
1 | Gross salary [Rs.in Lakhs) 23.42 25.29 22.10 35.00 105.81
(a} Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17{1)
of the Incame-tax Act, 1961
b} Value of perquisites s
Il 17(2} Income-tax Act, 1961 - - - . .
{c) Profits in liew of salary
under section 17{3)
Income- tax Act, 1961 - . - . -
2 | Stock Option - - . - -
3 | Sweat Equity = = E = i
4 | Commisson -
as % of profit - others, specify... - - - - -
| 5 | Others, please specify . - -
! Total (A) (in Lakhs)
| Ceiling as per the Act 2342 25.29 22.10 35.00 105.81




B. Remuneration to other directors (to Non-Executive Directors) - NIL

{Amout in Rs)
SN. Particubars of Remuneration Name of Directors Tousl
independent Directors Smt Uma R Krishnan | Smt Usha Sankar | Amount
1 | Feefor attending board committes meetings-in Rupees 40,000 60,000 100,000
Commisskon
Others, please specify
Total (1) 40,000 60,000 1,00,000
2 | Other Non-Executive Directors
Fee for attending board committes meetings
Commission
Others, please specify
Total (2)
Total (B)={1+2] 40,000 &0.000 1,00,000
Total Managerial Remunaration
Owveerall Calling as per the Act

C. Remuneration To Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/MANAGER/WTD

{in Lakhs)
SH, Partlculars of Remuneration Eey Managerial Personmel
CEQ 5 CFO Total
1 | Gross salary (in lakhs) 7.52 7.52
{a) Salanl as per provisions contained in section 17(1)
of the Income-tax Act, 1961
{b) Value of perquisites ufs 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 - - -
{e) Profits in liew of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961 | - - -
2 | Stock Option - B -
3 | Sweat Equity -
4 | Commisskon = =
- &% % of profit -
Others specify.. =
5 | Others, please specify- EPF
Total 7.52 152




Vil. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the Brief Detalls of Penalty / Authority | Appeal made,
Companies Act | Description | pynishment / Compounding | [RD / NCLT / if any
fses imposed courr] | iBive Detalls)
A. COMPANY
Penalty ~NA-
Punishment = NA -
Compounding = NA -
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty * NA -
Punishment « NA-
Compounding < NA -
C. OTHER OFFICERS
IN DEFALILT
Penalty « NA -
Punishment + NA -
Compounding ~MNA -




BALAKUMAR J & ASSOCIATES e

COMPANY SECRETARIES
CS5 JAGADESAN BALAKUMAR. B.Com, B.L, FCMA, FCS CS JAGADESAN BALAKUMAR
Maob : 98401 13064 Plot Mo.665, New MNo.11, SBOA Schopl Road,
Mail ; csbalskumar@gmail.com, Annaragar West Extention, Chennal 600 101,
|-balakumar@corplinservice.com csbalakumar@gmallcom

89394 70211, 044 26153321

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2017

To

THE MEMBERS

M/S, CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED
Admin Building, CMRL Depot,
Poonamallee High Road,

Opposite to Daniel Thomas School,
Koyambedu, Chennai 600 107.

| have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by M/5,. CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED
(hereinafter called “the Company”) having CIN:U60100TN20075GC065596. Secretarial Audit for
the Financial Year Ended 31st March 2017 was conducted in a manner that provided me a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing my
opinion thereon.
Based on my verification of the M/S. CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED'S books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also
the infarmation provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives
during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has,
during the Secretarial Audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2017,
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board Processes and Compliance Mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to
the reporting made hereinafter.
| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by M/S. CHENNAI METRO RAILLIMITED (“the Company”) for the Financial Year
ended on 31st March, 2017 according to the provisions of:

1, TheCompanies Act, 2013 (“the Act") and the rules made thereunder;



2. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations prescribed
thereunder to the extent of the Pass Through Assistance obtained from Government
of India against Japan International Cooperation Agency Loan in IPY as is applicable.

3, The Metro Railways (Construction of Works) Act, 1978 as amended by the
Metro Railways (Amendment) Act, 2009 and the Notifications issued thereunder.

4. The Metro Railways (Operation and Maintenance) Act, 2002 and the Notifications
issued thereunder.

| have also examined the papers, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by M/S. CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED (“the Company”) for the Financial Year ended
on 31st March, 2017 to ascertain adeguate systems and processes are in place inaccordance with
the provisions of :
1. Labour Legislations including :
a. Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1870 and the Rules and
Regulations prescribed thereunder;
b. The Inter-State Migrant Workmen (Regulation of Employment and Conditions of
Service) Act, 1979;
¢. The Building and Other Construction Workers (Registration of Employment and
Conditions of Service) Act, 1996,
d. Paymentof Minimum Wages Act, 1958,
e. The Paymentof Gratuity Act, 1972;
f. Employees Provident Fund And Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952;
gB. Employees State Insurance Act, 1948;
h. The Employees Compensation Act, 1923; and
i. TheMaternity Benefits Act, 1961
2. Environmental Legislations including :
a. ThePublic Liability Insurance Act, 1991; and
b. Environment (Protection) Act, 1986
| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by
The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Statutes,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines and 5tandards as mentioned above subject to the following
observations:
1., The time duration gap between the 46th and 47th Meetings of the Board of
Directars of the Company exceeded beyond the Section 173 of the Act prescribed
maximum days of 120.

&



| further report that,

i. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors. The changes in the compaosition
of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried
outin compliance with the provisions of the Act.

ii. Adeqguate notice was given to all the Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, notice,
agenda and detalled notes on agenda were sent in advance, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

lil. Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured
and recorded as part of the minutes.

iv. Where ever there arises a question on the applicability or interpretation of relevant
Statutory Provisions, appropriate opinion of Independent Respective Expert
Professionals are obtained.

| further report that, based on the information received and records maintained, there are
adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of
the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines, while it would be pertinent to take note of the following :

I. The Company’s Average Net Profit of the Company during the three immediately
preceding Financial Years 2014-16is Rs. 7,274.88 Lakhs. Pursuant to Section 135(5)
of the Act, the Board of the Company should have ensured spending Rs.145.50 Lakhs
for social causes in accordance with the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy framed
by the Board / Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. In the absence of doing so,
the Board shall report the reasons for not doing so in its Financial Year 2016-17
Board Report that would be prepared under Section 134 of the Act,

ji. The Systems and Processes pertaining to all the applicable Labour and Environment
Legislations besides the Company’s industry specific core legislations pertaining to the
Company as stated herein above need to be more properly conceived, devised,
documented, followed up and complied with.

jii. Asatthe end of the reporting period, the Company has an outstanding amount of
Rs.52,570.82 Lakhs to the credit of Share Application Money Pending in
Allotment Account for a period in excess of 60 [ sixty ) days. Pursuant to the provisions
of Section 42 {6) of the Act, the Company should have allotted Equity Shares within
60 (sixty) days from the date of receipt of such money. However, on making a reference
of the matter to The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, they had, vide their Office
Memorandum dated 22/11/2016 on File No. 05/50/2016-CL V written based on



OM No. K-14011/13/2016/MRTS/Coord dated 10/08/2016, clarified that Section 42
and Section 62(1)(c) are not applicable to Metro Rail Corporations { Companies ).

| further report that during the audit period, none of the following instances were carried out by
the Company

. Public/Rights / Preferential issue of shares / debentures / sweat equity.
ii. Redemption /buy-back of securities.

iii. Merger famalgamation / reconstruction etc.

iv. Foreign Technical Collaborations.

CS JAGADESAN BALAKUMAR

BALAKUMAR ] & ASSOCIATES

COMPANY SECRETARIES

Date : 06/07/2017 ICSI CP 3430 ; FCS 3646
Place : Chennai GS5TN 33AADPB4851D2ZC
Plot No.665, New No.11,

SBOA School Road,

Annanagar West Extention,

Chennal 600 101.

csbalakumar@gmail.com

98401 13064, 98409 21965; 044 4212 5222

Note: Thisreportisto be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and
forms anintegral part of this report.




ANNEXURE A TO THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2017

Ourreport of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1, Maintenance of Secretarial Records is the responsibility of the Management of the
Company. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these Secretarial Records
based on our Audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial
Records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in the Secretarial Records. We believe that the processes and practices,
we followed, provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of Financial Records and
Books of Accounts of the Company.

4, Where ever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the
compllance of Laws, Rules and Regulations and happening of events, etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable Laws, Rules,
Regulations, Standards, etc., is the responsibility of the Management of the Company.
Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management of the
Company has conducted the affairs of the Company.

CS JAGADESAN BALAKUMAR
BALAKUMAR J & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

ICSI CP 3430 ; FCS 3646

G5TN 33AADPB4B51D2IC

Plot No.665, New No.11,

SBOA School Road,

Annanagar West Extention,

Chennail 600 101,

Date :06/07/2017 csbalakumar@gmail.com
Place : Chennai 98401 13064; 98409 21965; 044 4212 5222




CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED

Balnnes Sheet an ot Mareh 31 2017, 2006 and Apeid 1, 2015 [Rugeas im ki)
Pl Wate , s gl Asat A ot
Mo oxepy 0 3L0aIms 0 MgAIs
AYRETS
1) Men-rurrent assets
Property, Pant and Equipment 7 59,9615 dRE, 30099 FTERT e
CapHal work i progress i 0913,325.24 BAT,GIZ IR RA&A,A35.38
Inkangible Feots 1 43.384.5]1 43,7336 48,407 34
Flrancial Assets
i1 eher Finssdal Assets 5 43317 1787 13595
Currpnt Tan Assets [Net) ] B 05 1588 18 L110.55
Other Non Current sssets 7 4T a03.55 18,217.96 16,589.81
{2} Cisnmnt axsets
Inventocies (] B2557 k40 400
Financisl Assers
{1} Trade Recenabies ] 18230 T8 -
{ii) Cash snd cash equivsbents i 130,114.02 16X, 650,50 [ FERA ol F )
(i) Dther Rank balancey 1 532.00 G1E46 500,00
{ivi Othor Finarclal Assets 12 I 15012 a8 i 9167461
Cirrrent Taa Assets [net) 13 L1310 120758 ATT.35
[ithar putment sl 12 18338 21890 E49.52
Total Assets 1,620,202.93 1,351, 356 54
“ECRLITY AMD LIARIITIES:
Equuity
Eruity Share capital 15 390, 10650 3590, 10650 A5 1690
Either pgulty 16 55,086 36 5,746 64 6176193
LAABILITIES
[1} Man-cument ludilie
Financlal Lisbilites
{1} Borrowings 17 1,088 743 53 B4, G 10 B35, 71800
{il) Dithes Fnarcial ki 18 00D T1.A44.00 1064861
Provisions 19 £12.06 FELTD 18183
Delferred tax fiabimies [Hes) 0 1795615 7.005.19 170
Oither Man-Cuarrest Ligbilites n 105, 41824 42.762.06 1440024
(2} Current labilivkes
Binancial Lisbiies
{1} Trade payakies 1 B,583.60 & 06576 4B TR
{il) Ocher financisl Banfmes FE 13299300 9273563 T1.AIE58
Other current ishilities a4 1,138.32 G864 18200
| Prenstion R A5 10965 N - % | SN - 1. |
Tatal Eguity and Uabiliting 1.812,308.02 1,620,202.99 1,391.356.54
Ky Accounting Estimans and Judgemarts &
Significant Accounting Polickes 1
Crifer Medes to iR Financis] Stabementy JwssD
Az per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Mz Vardhaman & Co
Chartered Accountants
Pankaj Kumar Bansal, IAS Rajeev Narayan Dwived
Managing Director (DIN: 05197128) Director [DIN; 07558468)
W Basharan
Partner Sujatha Jayara)
M. No: 012202 Director-Finance & Chief Financial Officer
FRN: (045225 (DIN: 07531722)
P Andal
Company Secretary (M.No: A2B465)
Place : Channal Place : Channal
Date : 20-09-2017 Date : 20-09-2017



CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED

Statement of Profit and loss for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 {Aupees in laiths)
Particulars Mote | for the year ended| for the year ended
Mo, 31.03.2007 31.03.2016
Revinae from aperations 26 212574 131067
Oahar incemi F 11,269,232 11,5649
i. Total income 13,3594.96 12,6875.59
Expendes:
Orporating ewpenses iB 283109 1.85,2%
Emplayes bensfits eapanie 29 3.096.39 2.462.09
Fnance costs an 2.261.27 aL13
Depreciation TR 10,892 65 6, 100,59
Other papenies il 371700 180314
Il Total expenses 12,789.10 12,956,159
1L (Loss) before tax {1 - 1) 19,394.14) (80.61)
1. Tan expense; EFi
(1) Current tax . .
{2} Deeferrod tas 10,946,596 659250
W, |Lioss) for the Year {100 - 1) [20,381.09) (7.073.10)
V1. Dther comprehensive indome
(i} temrmes that will not be reclasiified to profit or loss
a} Rermeasuremient gain f (loss) of defmed benefit obligations - Gratuity 35dii] {3.99) {6.19)
{3.99) {6.19)
Total Comprehensive incoma for the period [V Vi){Comprising Prafit (Less] and
Other Comprehensive Income for the period) {20,345.08) (7.079.29)
Earmings per eguity share: 33
- Basic and Diluted [Amount in ks.) [Face Value Rs. 1000f Share) [46.70) [16.53)
Key Accounting Estimates and Judgements & Significant Accounting Policies 1
Cther Notes to the Financlal $tatemonts 2ta 30

As per our report of even date attached

M/s Vardhaman & Co
Chartered Accountants
Pankaj Kumar Bansal, 1AS
Managing Director
(DIN: 051597128)
V Baskaran Sujatha Jayaraj
Partner Director-Finance & Chief Financlal Officer
M. Mo 012202 (DIN: 07531723)
FRM: MD4S2ES
P Andal
Company Secretary
(M. Ma: A2B4E5)
Place : Chennail Place : Chennai
Date ; 0-09-32017 Date ; 20-09-2017

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rajeey Marayan Dwived|

Director
(D M: D7554468)




CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED

Caih Flany STaimmant Tar the yaarn ended Mareh 33, 3017 & 2006 (s i Agichi )
| For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars Moles
032017 0 ILOFTONE |
AL CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
et PraliefTLos) balone Tax §3. 108 17) | &0 61
Adjustrnae for-
Depredialion 10,892.65 6. 100,59
Iiferedt Eeperae 2,255.05 TRy
Inferest Income (10 Ra], 16) |10, R4Y. B3]
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant & Eguipmert {3.0%) 067
Defered Governmant Grant recognised In F&L [ETER T 151.84)
Ehperating Profit before working Capital Changes {7, 460.58) {8,402 58)
Adjustrnest for-
increasef (Docreasa) lm imssntory |TaL.ET) [=9.40)
Incranie) [Docrease) in Trade Recesviabie |305.05) [77.25]
ingrease/ [Decrease) i Other Finasctal Assrts LT LT 145.538.43
increase |Decresse) in Other Al {28,922 2%) (LS18.80]
increase/ (Decrexse) m Provision 14% .64 19378
increase; |Decreasa) in Trode Paynbie [%02.47) {360.52]
increased {Dvcreass ) in Ogher Finandal Lisbiities 1T.618.75 17630063
i 4 A
T S ; STt
o Incare Tas
et Fram sfier tax 156, 164,
B, CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Salef (Purchase) of Propery; Plant & Eguipmont [181,505,24] [243,630.56)
Sale) [Purchase) of Intangible Assets 325,371 -
increase/ (decrease] in Caphal Woak in Progress (25,592,86] [17, 797 .00
Rewriburtement of Tasd B Dulisd towards PRE 6, 24537 571810
Inferest Recelved 11,148.74 14433
Fiet Cash From investing AcHvities i el T Baabhisy
. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Sharg Capital & Share Application Mooy 931500 1213700
Loans recehved during the year 104,660.21 5. 11LER
Gones Girpm - Suhaerdinate Debt E1,547.94 12612 81
Fiet Cask Fram Rethition 17540015 | 1905060
D, Wet changes bn cash & cash equivabents [A+B+C) [¥3,520.05) FRRTTRL]
E. Cash & Cash equhalents {Dpening Balance] 164,164 97 13 81077
F. Cash & Cash Equivaients (Closing Balance] 13064602 164, 16636
GuCash & Cash Equivalonts comsials ol
Cagh on Hand g 343
Balane With bards - Cureest Acccung 37 RA1 47 JTATLON
Batdnce With banks - Deposit Accourt
| [Fefer Note 1 Below) 52,931.11 19628645
130,646.03 164,166 96
5. Wiuilil ebimalked ihart i deggdati of T 51X 00 Lakha [PY STEA0 Liaki) 1Rt ges Rt indnd Tien Giainss 1aoess af ciedit and bkhk guaranisei
[pued for the Company.,
2. Reconcilation botween Cash and Cauh Equivalests 31 per Balance Sheet and 33 per Cosh Flow Staterment
Panticulary Mﬂ{ AL gt DLOT.20AT | Asoat 31002006
Cash & Cask fquivalents as pei Balance Sheet 10 13011403 163 £50.51
Add: Dther Bank Balances coniidened as part of Cash & Cxh Egunvabents for the purpose of
Cash Flow Satement 11 53200 51645
Cash B Cash EquivalEnts ab pid Caik Flow Stabement 130, G86.0F 164, 166.57
s par pur repon of even date amached Faor and on behalf of che Board of Direciomn
® Vardhaman & Co Penha) Kumar Baendal, 1A% Rajeey Nasayan Gwived
Chariered Accountants Managing Directar Dlrector
[DIM: O5157128) [DM: O7S58448)
W Daskaren Sujatis lavaral
Partner Derector-Finance & Chief Fnancial Officer
FRM; 0045225
P andal
Cormpany Seonmtany
(Pl Bdoc ATRAGS)
Piacn ; Chinaal Ploce ; Chennad
Date ; 20-09-2007 Date : 10-00-p017




CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED
Staternent ol Changes In Equity for the years ended March 31, 2017 £ 2016

_A. Equity Share Capital

N . .1

Note No.| As ot 31.03.2017 | As st 31.03.2016
Equity Share Capital as at the beglnning of the Year 15 390,106.90 390, 106,90
Auld: Share Capital lsdved during the year
Equity Share Caplial a3 o1 the Year End 390,106.90 350,106,590
B. Other Equity o ___[Rs.in lakhs)
Raserves and Surplus Ehare w
Particulars Note|  Capital Retained | poney Pending Total
Ma. | Reserve Earnings Aligtment
_ Balance a5 of April 1, 2015 3a162 3024782 | 31,108B2 @ BLTIBIE
Changes in Accounting Polloy Jf Price Period Ermors
[Refer Mote Mo, 350 - 43,67 - 4367
_Apstated Balance as at April 1, 3005 34162 912 | JILIMEED 61, 7651.93
Addditions duting the year 137.00 - 13700
Share Application Money Recaived During the Year 12,127.00 12,127.00
Profit/{Loss) for the Year - [r.of31m {7.073.10)
lperms of Other Comprehenbee intame H
Remeasurement Gain § (Loss) of Defined Benefit Plan | 16 [6.13) (6.19)
Total Comprehensive neome for the Year 137.00 |7 ,079.249) - |6, 942.29)
Additions during the yeas 169,61 - 16581
Share Application Mongy Recalved During the Year 9,3315.00 9,315.,00
Profit/[Loss) for the Year [30.341.04) (20, 341.05)
Itermid of Other Comprehetsing Income .
Aemeasurement Gadn/{Loss] of Defined Benefit Plan |2.99] (2.95)
Toital Camprehensive Incarms for the Yeas 162,81 | (20,345 .08) = [20.175.27)
Balance a3 of Manch 31, 2017 54843 2. 867,12 51,570.82 56,086.37
Ay por our roport of oven date attachod For and on bohall of the Board of Direchors
M/s Vardhaman & Ca Pankaj Kumar Bansal, |AS Rajeey Naroyan Dwived]
Chartered Accountants Managing Directos Director
{DIN: D5197128) (DIN: 07554468)
V Baskaran Sujatha layaraj
Fartner Director-Finance & Chiel Financlal Oificer
M, No; 012302 {DiM: O7S31722)
FRN: 0045325
P Andal
Secretary
(M. No: AZB46S)
Place : Chennai Place ;: Chennad
Date : 20-09-2017 Date ; 20-08-2017




. ﬂ’H!..'l

CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March 2017
Company Information
Chennai Metro Rail Limited (CMRL), registered CIN UBD100TN20075GC0O65596,
was incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 on 3" December 2007 and is a
Government Company within the meaning of Section 2{45) of the Companles Act
2013({Section 617 of the Companies Act, 1956). It is a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) and

Joint Venture between Government of India (GOI) and Government of Tamil Nadu (GOTN])
for the implementation of Chennai Metro Rail Project in Chennai, Tamil Nadu.

NOTE1-KEY ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS & SIGINIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis and the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("Act') (to the extent notified). The Ind AS are prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.
In accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the
Company has adopted the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, The adoption was carried out in
accordance with Ind A5 101 First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards.
The transition was carried out from Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 {IGAAP), which was the previous GAAP, Reconciliations and descriptions of
the effect of the transition has been summarized in Note No. 35,
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard
requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

1.2. Key Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires
management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates,
judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets and liabllities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the period.



Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes
aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are
reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if
material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

In particular, significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments inapplying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements are as given below:

a) Tenureof Interest Free Subordinate Debt from Government

As per the Mol between CMRL, GoeTN and Gol, subordinate debt is to be repaid after
repayment of Senior Tem Debt (JICA Loan] availed for the metro project. For the purpose
of determining the fair value of subordinate debt from Gol and GoTN, it has been assumed
that the loans would be repaid in full in the year in which the |ast repayment installment
date of the latest JICA Loan tranche falls due, in the absence of information regarding any
specific loan repayment schedule at present,

b) FairValue of Interest Free Loans / Deposits
For the purpose of determination of fair value of interest free subordinate debt and other
interest free long-term deposits, interest rate has been considered based on Lending Rate
of State Bank of India available for the comparable tenor.

c) Useful lives of Property, Plant & Equipment

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the
Company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining
an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of
its life. The useful lives and residual values of company's assets are determined
by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including
at each financial year end. The lives are based on histarical experience with similar assets
aswell as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes
in technology.
d) Defined Benefit Plans and Compensated Absences

The cost of the defined benefit plans, compensated absences and the presentvalueoft h e
defined benefit obligation are based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit
credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may
differ from actual developmentsin the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date,
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1.3. Significant Accounting policies

a) Property, Plant & Equipment

1. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. Costs directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the
praperty, plant and equipment are ready for use, as intended by management.

Barrowing costs relating to qualifying assets are also included to the extent they relate to
the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.
2. Expenditure incurred onenabling assets viz. utility diversion, environmental pratection,
road diversion / restoration / signage, renovation work of drainage system and
rehabilitation and resettlement which is compulsorily required to be incurred and directly
attributable to the construction of MRTS is capitalized with the respective identifiable assets.
3. Inthecase of assets putto use, where final settlement of bills with contractors is yet to be
effected, capitalization is done on provisional basis subject to necessary adjustments in
the year of final settlement.
4. Assets & systems common to more than one section of the project are capitalized on the
basis of technical estimates / assessments.
5. Itemssuch asspare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment are recognized in
accordance with IND AS 16 when they meet the definition of Property, Plant & Equipment.
Otherwise, such items are classified as inventory,
6. Capitalization of assets for a new section to be opened for public carriage of passengers is
done after ensuring its completeness in all respects after administrative formalities and
compliance of the requirements stipulated by Commissioner of Metro Rail Safety
imperative for the opening of the Section.
7. Freehold Land from Government and Government Departments
a. Freehold lands received from Government of Tamil Nadu (GoTN) by means of interest f
free subordinate debt are capitalized at the relevant Guidellne value.

b. Lands acquired from public bodies, under an arrangement of swap with GaTN,
are capitalized at the values stipulated by the appropriate authorities,

¢. Lands acquired by the company from various Government agencies for payment
consideration are capitalized.

8. Freehold land - Acquired from Private Land Owners
Amount paid for acquisition of private land is capitalized upon receiving original title deed
after registration or upon issuance of award by the competent authority, whichever is
earlier. Any enhanced compensation demanded by the land owners shall only be
accounted based on actual decision of the courts.

&



9. Subsequentexpenditures relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only
when it Is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to
the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Repairs and
maintenance costs are recognized in net profit in the Statement of Profit and Lass
whenincurred.

10. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial
statements upon sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are
recagnized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Assets to be disposed off are reported
at the lower of the carrying value or the fair value less cost to sell.
11. Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at
each balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under other non-current assets.
b) CapitalWorkin Progress
a. Assets underinstallation or construction as on the balance sheet date are shown as
Capital Work in Progress. In case of lump-sum contracts, expenditure is booked as
Capital Work in Progress based on certification by General Consultants / Certified
Engineers for the project which is done on a contractual milestone basis.
Administrative and general overheads (net of income) directly / indirectly attributable
to project are classified as expenses pending capitalization and grouped under capital
work in progress.

b. Claimsincluding Price variation are accounted for on acceptance.

c. Liquidated damages and penalties are accounted for on settlement of final bills ar
on award of arbitration proceedings with judicial authorities. Liquidated damages levied
to mitigate the extra cost of construction are adjusted against the cost of related property,
plant & equipment. Other LDs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

¢) Depreciationand Amortization

Depreciation is charged on straight line basis over the estimated useful life of property, plant

and egquipment as prescribed under Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, However, incase

of the following assets, depreciation is based on the useful life as determined by the
management based on technical evaluation, which is different from the useful life prescribed

inSchedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013

Asset Group Assot Type Useful life |

Rolling Stock Rolling Stock 30 yoars

Track works Track Works 30 years

Escalators & Elevators Escalators & Elevators 30 years

Office Equipmeant Mobile Phones, Tablets etc 3 Years

Plant & Machinary Elactronic Toe Load Measuring Davice 3 Yaars

Plant & Machinery Dawatering Pump and Accessorias 5 years

Plant & Machinery Oscillation Monitoring System 5 Years

Assels costing Rs, 5,000 or less All assets Year of purchase

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at th‘E end of each
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d) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets including railway lease land are stated at cost less accumulated

amortization and impairment. Intangible assets are amortized over their respective

individual estimated useful life on a straight-line basis, from the date that they are
available for use.

Amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed at the end of each financial year.

e) Government Grants

a. Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value where thereisa
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the company will comply with
all attached conditions.

b. Government grantsrelating toincome are deferred and recognized in the profitor loss
over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate and presented within other income.

c. Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred Income and are credited to profit or loss
on a systematic basis over the expected life of the related depreciable assets and
presented within otherincome.

d. When the company recelves grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant
are recorded at fair value amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected
useful lifein a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset.

e. When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions,
with an interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this
favorable interest is regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance is initially
recognized and measured at fair value and the government grant is measured as the
difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received.
The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting policy applicable to financial
liabilities.

f) Foreign Currency Transaction

1. Functional Currency
The functional currency of the company is the Indian Rupee. These financial
statements are presented In Indian rupees {rounded off to Lakhs).

2. Transactionsand translations
Foreign-currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated into the
relevant functional currency at exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date.
The gains or losses resulting from such translations are included in net profit in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

&



]

h)

Non-monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and
measured at fairvalue/historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the
date when the fair value was determined/at the date of transaction.

Revenue, expense and cash-flow items denominated in foreign currencies are translated

into the relevant functional currencies using the exchange rate in effect on the date of the
transaction.

Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement of foreign currency transactions are

included in determining net profit for the period in which the transaction is settled.

Inventories

Inventory is valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower. Cost includes cost of

purchase and other costsincurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and

condition. Costis determined on weighted average basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cash,

chequesin hand, bank balances, demand deposits with banks and bank overdrafts, that

are repayable on demand, which forms an integral part of the entity’s cash management,

hence are included in cash equivalents.

Employee benefits

1. Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected
to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services
up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be
paid when the liabilities are settled

2. Otherlong-term employee benefit obligations
The liability for encashable leave/leave travel concession that are not expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service, are measured at the present value of expected future
payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of
the reporting period using the projected unit credit method, determined based on
actuarial valuation. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of
the reporting period on Government Bonds that have terms approximating to the
terms of the related obligation. Re-measurements as a result of experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.



3. Post-employment obligations
a) Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity
The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity
plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated
annually using the projected unit \credit method based on actuarial valuation.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market ylelds at the end of the reporting
period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligation.
The netinterest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in
employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss. Remeasurement gains and
losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.
They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in Equity and In the
Balance Sheet, Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting
from plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in profit or loss as
past service cost,
b) Defined contribution Plan - Provident fund:
The company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds
as per local regulations. The company has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due.
4. Employment Benefits to Deputationists
Employee benefits due to employees on deputation from other state /central
departments / PSUs are paid to their respective parent organizations / employer based on
their direction. Necessary provision for such benefits payable at the close of the Financial
Year are estimated and provided for.

1} Prepaid items
Individual items of Prepaid Expenses over Rs 100,000 each are recognized.

k) RevenueRecognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, value added
taxes and amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The company recognizes revenue

when the amount of revenue ¢an be reliably measured, and it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity.



1, FareRevenue

Income from fare collection is recognized on the basis of use of tokens, money value of the
actual usage in case of Smart Cards and other direct fare collection. Single tickets are
recognized as revenue on the day of purchase.

2. Income from Property Development

Rental income arising from operating leases of property is recognized in accordance with

the terms and conditions of the contract with the licensee/flessee and Is accounted for an

astraight-line basis over the lease terms. Such rental income is included in revenue inthe

statement of profit or loss.

3. Interestincome

a) Interest onshort term deposits with banks Is recognized as income in the statement of
profit and loss, using the effective interest method.

b) Interest on mobilization & other advances to vendors on Capital Works is adjusted
against the Expenses Pending Capitalization.

4. Otherincidentalincome

Income from sale of tender documents for the construction works and Rental Income

receivable from the contractors in connection with the construction works are reduced

from the expenses pending capitalization.

Borrowing Cost

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,

construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time

thatis required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use ar sale. Qualifying

assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their

intended use or sale. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent

regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending

their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred,

Taxation

The income tax expense or credit for the period consist of the tax payable on the current

period’s taxahle Income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction and

the changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and

to unused tax losses. The current income tax charge Is calculated on the basis of the tax

laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

. -
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Deferred income tax is provided in full, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused
tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates
toitems recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in eguity. In this case, the
tax isalso recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively
Provision, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets

Provision for legal and other claims are recognised when there is a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made on the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
tothe liability,

A contingent liability is disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent asset is disclosed when the inflow of
economic resource is probable.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of
past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses
associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing
and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Financial Instruments

Initial recognition

The company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments. All financial assets and liabilities are
recognized at fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs that are directly

attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, that are
not at fairvalue through profit orloss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition,




a)

Subsequent measurement
i. Financial assets carried at amortized cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized costif it is held within a
business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash
flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

li. Financial assets atfairvalue through profit orloss

A financial asset which Is not classified in the above category is subsequently fair
valued through profit or loss.

ili. Financialliabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, for trade and other payables maturing within one year from the
Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short
maturity of these instruments.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies
for derecognition under IND AS 109, A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability)
is derecognized from the Company’s Balance Sheet when the obligation specified inthe
contractis discharged or cancelled or expires.

Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the company uses a variety of
methods and assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each
reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value include discounted cash flow
analysis, available quoted market prices and dealer quotes, etc. All methods of assessing
fairvalue result in general approximation of value, and such value may never actually be
realized.

Fair Value

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the
accounting policies mentioned above. Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:
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Inthe Principal market for the asset or liability, or

Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

All assets and liability for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy that categorizes into three
levels, described as follows, the inputs to valuation technigues used to measure value.
The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted price in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 inputs) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs
(Level 3 inputs)

Level 1 - quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level 2 - inputs other than the quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for
the assets or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 -inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability.

For assets or liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements at fair valueon a
recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization at the end of each reporting period
and discloses the same,

Leases

Company as Lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease
that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the
Company isclassified as a finance lease.

Finance leases are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair
value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of
the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability. Finance charges are recognized in finance costs in the statement of profit and
loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalized in accordance with the general policy on the borrowing costs. Contingent
rentals are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred,

Aleased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no
reasonable certainty that the company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term,
the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the
lease term.

&



Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as Lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating
lease is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which
theyareearned.

s) Impairment
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount
(I.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined an
an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount
is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.
Ifsuch assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the
assets exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment foss is
reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change In the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the assetin increased
toits revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization or
depreciation) had noimpairment loss been recognized for the asset in prioryears.

t) EarningsPerShare
a) Basicearnings pershare
Basic earnings per share Is calculated by dividing
% The net profit attributable to the equity holders of the company
< Bythe weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period
b) Diluted earnings pershare

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity
holders of the company

&



< By the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
earnings per equity share and

¢ Alsothe weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

The dilutive patential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the

equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the

outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of

the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date.
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2.2

2.3

24

25

26

2.7

28

2.9

The company has capitalised the lands given by the Government of Tamilnadu
amounting to Rs.137,699.85 lakhs based on Government order at the guideline value and
considered the same as a subordinate debt payable to Government of Tamilnadu.
The lands have been capitalised to the extent of the actual possession obtained. The same
are subject to alienation by the appropriate authorities. Any differences in the value at the
time of alienation will be accounted for at that point of time.

Lands acquired from other government agencies valued at Rs. 69,673.20 Lakhs have been
capitalised at the guideline value pending alienation. Any variation in values at the time
of alienation will be appropriately accounted for at that point of time.

Lands valued at R5.1051.49 Lakhs have been capitalised pending alienation in respect of
which the payee shall be determined after litigation. Any variation in values at the time of
alienation will be appropriately accounted for at that point of time

Land Includes Rs. 648.43 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs.478.62 lakhs) that have been acquired
without any consideration and which have been valued based on their guideline value and
considered as capital reserve,

Landto anextent of 15116.89 sqmt. valued at Rs, 8794.22 Lakhs have been capitalisedin
excess of the land extent specified in the Government Gazette Order. The alienation of
the lands is being finalised with the Government of Tamilnadu

Forelgn Exchange difference amounting to Rs. 89.42 Lakhs (Previous Year - R5. 402,78
lakhs) have been Capitalised during the financial year.

Borrowing Costs amounting to Rs. 2427.32 lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 2310.89 lakhs) have
been Capitalised during the year.

Adjustments to cost of land amounting to Rs. 2934.88 Lakhs is on account of reduction of
area of the lands taken over from State Government agencies pending alienation,

The 5t Thomas Mount Station is capitalized based on the technical estimated value and it
will be reviewed on finalization of Mol with Southern Railway for the sharing of expenses
between MRTS Station & 5t Thomas Mount Metro Station,
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Motes to the Financial Statements for the yearended 315t barch 2017

(Tin Lakhs)  (Rinlakhs)  (¥in Lakhs)

Nate 2 - Property, Plant & Equipment 31.03.2017 | 31.03.2016 | 01.04.2015
Property, Plant & Equipment - Refer Separate Sheet attached 65396156 | 48220199 | 24366027
Total 65396156 | 482,201.99 | 243,660.27
Note 3 - Capital Work In Progress 31.03.2017 | 31.03.2016 | 01.04.2015
CWIP - Refer 5-Epam'LEﬂ1EEt attached 813, 325.24 387.632.38 86983538
Total 913,325.24 | 887,632.38 | 869,835.38
Note 4 - Intangible Assets 31032017 | 31.03.2016 | 01.04.2015
ittangible Assets. - Refer Separate Sheet attached 4338451 | 4373326 | 4440734
Total 4338451 | 43,733.26 | 44,407.34
Mote 5 - Other Financial Assets 31.03.2017 31.03. 2016 01.04.2015
DEPEEI[E{HHH’ Mate Na. 5.1] 433.17 337.82 135.55
Total 43317 337.82 135.95

51 Represents refundable deposits with Electricity, water and other departments. Since the exact
term of the same is not ascertainable in view of the expected perpetual usage of related services,

e arr et T BN S PP PR

| Nate 6 - Current Tax Assets 31.03.2017 | 31.03.2016 | 01.04.2015
¥ [4 L 4
Income Tax - Advance Tax & TOS [net) 2,802.96 1,588.05 1,110.70
Wialth Tax (net) 0.13 0.13 (0.15)
Total 2,803.09 1,588.18 | 111055
Mote 7 - Other Non Current Assets 31.03.2017 | 31.03.2016 | 01.04.2015
_ t e | t
Unsecured, Considered good
Capital Advances
Land Advance 24,453.03 3B20.53 373276
Advances to Contractors
i} Mobilization and ather Advances (Refer Note No, 7.1) 20,559.58 12,201.89 10,252.07
Ii} Material Advances . . 546,82
Advance to Alrports Authority of India (AAi) 350,00 443,23 1,056,659
Balance with Govt Authorities
| Service tax Input Credit 2,120.38 175231 | 1000147
Total | 4748299 | 18217.96 16,589.81
7.1 Mobilization and other advances to contractors are covered by the Bank Guarantees.
| Note 8 - Inventories 31.03.2017 | 31.03.2016 | 01.04.2015
LA L4 L4
a) Stores & Spare Parts 807.77 57.21 3.41
b) Lease Tools 17.80 719 1.59
___Total 825.57 64.40 5.00 |




(TinLakhs)  (TinLakhs) (T in Lokhs)
Note 9 - Trade Receivables 31.03.2017 | 31.03.2016 | 01.04.2015
t L L4
Unsecured, Considered Good
Trade Riecehvables - Property Devalopment 382.30 77.25 -
___Total 38230 1725 -
Note 10 - Cash and Cash Eguivalents 31,03.2017 | 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
T 4 L4
Cash on Hand 30,24 D43 367
Balances with Bank
In Current Accounts 37,774.33 2797297 T.495.60
in Deposit Accounts | with Maturities less than 3 manths} 3,201.31 47,199,929 82,822.00
in Deposit Accounts (with Maturities more than 3 months
but less than 12 months) 89,200.00 BE,570.00 32,200.00
Book Overdraft (91.51) (10169) | (1,210.50)
Total 130,114.02 | 163,650,50 @ 121,310.77
Note 11 - Other Bank Balances 31.03.2017 | 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
t L4 t
Balance with Banks in Deposits Accounts
Earmarked Short Term Deposits 532.00 516.46 S00.00
{with Maturities less than 3 montha)[Refer Note No. 11.1)
Total 532,00 516,46 500.00

11.1 Earmarked short term deposits of Rs. 532.00 Lakhs (PY Rs. 516.46 Lakhs) are held under lien
against letters of credit and bank guarantees issued for the Company.

___Note 12 - Other Financial Assets ,;mm.} | _31.03.20 .!;%_' .-ﬂl&ﬂl%_

Unsecured, Considered Good

VAT Recoverable from GOTN (Refer Note Mo. 12.1) 10,846.22 11,087.12 14,015.97
Stamp Duty Recoverable from GOTN (Refer Note Nao. 12.2) 494,99 - -
Interest Accrued On Deposits with Bank 242585 2,733.43 329.84
Pass Through Assistance against JICA Loan [Refer Note No. 23.2) . * 74,032.16
Festival Advance to Employees 1B.41

Depasiis 24.74 10.64 -
Other Becelvables [/ Becoverables 3,940.01 5,610.03 4,796, 64
Total 17,750.22 2045122 | 92674.61

12.1 VAT payments incurred amounting to Rs. 10,846.22 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 11,097.12 Lakhs) are
reimbursable from Government of Tamil Nadu in accordance with clause 104 of the
Memarandum of Understanding between the Government of India, Government of Tamil Nadu

and the company.

12.2 During the year, the company has recognised stamp duty and registration charges incurred
towards Phase lextension amounting to Rs. 494.99 Lakhs as recoverable from GoTN in

accordance with the above referred clause in the Mol

Note 13 - Current Tax Assets 31.03.2017 | 31.03.2016 | 01.04.2015
L8 t L

Income Tax - Advance Tax & TDS (net) 1,131.10 1,202.58 477.35

Tatal 1,131.10 1,202.58 47735

. ~



15.2 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Shares

Equity Shares

{0inLakhs)  (UinLlakhs) (Uin Lakhs)
Note 14 - Other Current Assets 31.03.2017 31032006 | 01.04.2015
t L1 T
Prepald Expenses 94,73 105.58 76530
Other Advances B2.24 A05.59 353.61
Gratuity Fund with LIC (net) (Refer Note No. 41.2) 5.28 17.82 30,61
Total 182.35 528.99 649,52
Note 15 - Share Capital 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 | 01.04.2015
L] T L{
Authorized
B58,00,000 Equity Shares of € 1000/ each
{(Previous Year - 658,00,000 Equity Shares of € 1000/ each) 658,000,00 | 658,000.00 | 658000.00
issued, Subscribed and Paid up Equity Shanes
{Number of shares of T 1000 each) 39,010,690 39,010,690 39,010,690
Equity Shares of € 1000/ each fully paid 390,106.90 | 390,106.90 | 390,106.90
Total 390,106.90 390,106.90 | 390,106.90
15.1 Reconcillation of Equity shares and amounts outstanding
| Particulars | 31.03.2017 | 31,03.2016
No.of shares | No. of shares
At the beginning of the year 39,010,690 39,010,690
tssuied during the year - *
At the end of the year 39,010,690 | 39,010,690

The Company has one class of equity shares, having a par value of Rs. 1000/- each. Each shareholder
is ellgible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors Is subject
to approval of the shareholdersin the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim

dividend.

Inthe event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of
the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their sharehalding.

15.3 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

B R

e P |

Name of Shareholder 31.03.2017 | 31.03.2016
. No. of Shares | No. of Shares
The President & Nominees, Government of India 19,505,345 | 19,505,345
The Gavernar & Nominees, Gavernment af Tamilnadu 10,505,345 19,505,345
Taotal 39,010.690 39,010,690
Mote 16 - Other Equity 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
[] [4 L]
Reserves & Surplus
Capital Reserve [Refer Note No. 16.1.1) 648,43 AT8R.&E 34162
Retalnad Earnings - Surplus / (Deficit) 2.867.11 13,212.30 30,291.49
Share Application Money Pending Allotment 52,570.82 43,255.87 31,128.82
Total 56,086.36 66,946.64 61,761.93




(¢ intakhs} (U inLakhs)

16.1 Movement In Other Equity 31.03.2017 | 31032016
4 r

Capital Reserve [Refer Note No. 16.1.1)
Opaning Balance 478.62 341,62
Add: Additions during the year 169.81 137.00
Closing balance 648.43 478.62
Retained Earnings - Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opaning Balance 23,212.20 30,291.49
Add: Total Comprehensive income/ (Loss] for the Year | (20,345.08) |  (7,079.29)
Closing balance 2867.13 23.312.20
Share Application Money Pending allotmaent
Opening Balance 43,255.82 31,128.82
Add: Received during the Year 9,315.00 12,127.00
Less ; Share Capital isswed -1 -
Closing balance (Refer Note No. 16.1.2) 52.570.82 43,255 87
Total 56,086.37 66, 946.64

16.1.1 Capital Reserve represent the value of lands that have been acquired from parties other
than government without any consideration and which have been valued at guideline value.

16.1.2 Details of Advance Share Application Maney 31.03. 2017 31.03,2016 ﬂ‘l..l]-!.HlL
L $ L4

= From Gowvernment of India 9,.315.00

« Fram Gowernmant of Tamil Madu 43,255.82 43,7255.82 3}.11#.32

Total 52,570.82 43,755 82 31,128.87

A) Chennai Metro Rail Limited is a Special Purpose Vehicle formed as Joint Venture between
the Government of India and Government of Tamil Nadu and both Governments hold 50% each
shares in the equity capital. The equity contribution is being released in phases and in order
tomaintain equal shareholding, the excessrelease are held as Share Application Money, Equity
Shares of Rs.1000 each at par shall be issued to the shareholders having all rights similar to the
existing shares, issued in such @ manner that the proportion of equity holding of the shareholders
are equal. The company has sufficient authorized share capital to cover the share capital amount
resulting from allotment of shares against share application money.

Note 17 - Long Term Borrowlings 31.03.2017 | 31.03.2016 01042015
L] L L]

Unsecured

Term Loans from Gther Parties

From Government of India agalnst

japan International Cooperation Agency {JICA)(Refer Note No. 17.1) 787.052.27 | 698,657.06 | 532,882.73

Subordinate Debt froam Government of india {Refer Note Ne. 17.2) 31,125.92 29,350,996 2874500

Subordinate Debt from Government of Tamil Nadu

[Refer Note No. 17.2) 270,565,323 265,671.08 264,100.27

Total 1,088,743.52 | 993,688.10 | 82571800




17.1To meet the Project cost, the Govt of India has provided Pass Through Assistance against
Japan International Cooperation Agency (IICA) loan. JICA sanctioned four tranches, the first
tranche sanctionedon 21/11/2008is for 21,751 millions of JPY at interest rate of 1.2% p.a
{except for consultancy services for which the rate is 0.01%) and the second, third & fourth
tranches sanctioned on 31/3/2010, 28/3/2013 & 4/3/2016 are for 59,851 million JPY and
48,691 million JPY and 19,981 JPY million respectively at interest rate of 1.4% p.a (except for
consultancy service for which the rate is 0.01%)}, and the commitment charges of 0.1% p.a. for
the all the tranches except fourth tranche for which the fromt end fee is 0.20%). These loans
will be repayable in half yearly instalmentsover 30 years (10 Years Moratorium from date
of agreement & after that 20 Years repayment) Foreign exchange fluctuations on JICA loans
are not recognised by the company.

17.2Government of India(GOI) and Government of Tamilnadu(GOTN) being JV partners
contributes interest free subordinate debt to the extent of Rs. 73,000 Lakhs and Rs. 84,400
Lakhs respectively for the project. As per the MOU between GOI, GOTN and CMRL, the
Subordinate Debt from the GOTN is to be suitably enhanced when the Land cost finally works
out to be more than Rs. 93,500 Lakhs. Asonthe Balance sheetdate, the company has
incurred anamount of Rs.1,94,222 Lakhs (PreviousYear Rs. 1,83,948.83 Lakhs) towards
the cost of RER and Land / Land Advance in respect of which funds have been received from
GOTN amounting to Rs. 167,652 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 153,322 Lakhs). Furtherlandsh a v e
been acquired for without payment consideration amounting to Rs, 137,699.85 Lakhs
(Previous Year Rs. 137,699.25 Lakhs) pending alienation of the lands and which has been
accounted as subordinate debt of GOTN in accordance with the MOU.

The company will be required torepaythesubordinate debt to GOl and GOTN
proportionately only after repayment of 1iCA loan availed for the project.

During the year, the company has received subordinate debt of Rs. 50,000 Lakhs and
Rs.18,000 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 17,821.58 Lakhsand Rs.6,977 Lakhs) respectively from
GoTN and Gol, These amounts have been recognised at their fair value of Rs. 4,766.22 Lakhs
(PY Rs.1,570.81 Lakhs) and Rs. 1,715.84 Lakhs (PY Rs. 614.96 Lakhs) respectively using
prevailing market interest rates. The difference between the gross proceeds and fair value
ofthe loan as above amountingto Rs. 61,517.94 Lakhs (PY Rs. 22,612.81 Lakhs) has been
recognised asdeferred income under Government Grants, Further, out the government
grantrecognised as deferred income in the previousyear,anamount of Rs. 199.84 Lakhs
has been credited to the Statement of Profitand Lossduring theyear. Further, interest of
Rs.178.14 Lakhs has been recognised on subordinatedebt during the year.

Note 18 - Other Financial Liabliities 31.03.2017 | 31.03.2016 | 01.04.2015
t t 1
Retention Maoney Payable (Refer Note No 18.1) 21,068.91 22,254.19 20,311.19
Security Deposits 546,03 391.72 139,33
Other Payables [ Net) (Refer Note No 18.2) 145.08 193.09 198,09
21,760.02 22 844.00 20,648.61




18.1 Retention money represents amount held as security till the completion of defect liability
period of various project related contracts. As per the practice followed by the company, at
the contractor's request, such retention moneys are released against submission of Bank
Guarantee of an equivalent amount based on approval of competent authority on a case to
case basis, Accordingly, retention money is carried at its original transaction value,

18.2 Other Payables represent the amount payable at their guideline value towards the land
acquired under litigation net of the deposits made in respect of the same with the Courts.

Mote 19 - Long Term Provisions | 31,03.2017 31.03.2006 | 01.04.2015
z L4 t
Provision for employvee benefits (Refer Note No, 41) 413,06 283,70 181.83
Total 412,06 28370 181.83
Mote 20 - Deferred Tax Liability 31.03.2017 | 31.03.2016 | 01.04.2015
L [ 1 L
Deferred Tax Linblity
on Account n{BﬂEref:?in-ﬂu-n aned Amortisation 17 956.15 71.009.19 1670
Met deferred tax liabilities 17,556.15 7,009,159 16.70
Mote 21 - Other Non-Current Liabilities 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
% | |
Deferred Income - Government Grant [Refer Note No. 21.1 betow) 109, 400,54 42,262.06 14,401.24
Dthers 17.71 = .
Total 109,218.24 42,262.06 14,401.24
21.1. Movement in Government Grants
For the Year Ended 31.03,2016 (Uinlakhs) (TinLlakhs) (%inLakhs)  (%in Lakhs)
Particulars Opening Grants Amount Closing
Balance recognised Balance
during  |in P&L during
the Year the Year
Subordinate Debt - GoTN 16.250.77 " 16,250.77
Subordinate Debl - God a 6,362.04 - B, 362.04
Reimbursement of Taxes & Ditles 14,014.70 5.299.85 50.45 19,264.11
Others 386.54 - 1.39 385. 14
Total 14,401.24 2791266 @ 5184 42,262.06
For the Year Ended 31.03.2017
Particulars Opening Grants Amount Closing
Balance recognised Balance
during | in P&L during
the Year the Year
Subordinate Debt - GoTN 1625077 | 4523378 14381 61,340.93
Subordinate Debt - Gol 6.362.04 | 16.284.16 5622 2258998
Reimbursement of Taoes & Duties 19,254.11 5,994,498 170,849 25,087.90
Others 385,14 - 342 381.73
Total 42,262.06 | 67,512.42 37394 | 109.400.54
. Note 22 - Trade Payables
31.03.2017 31.03.2016 0rL.04. 2015
. ¥ L3 L
Due to Micro and Small Enterprises - - -
__Due to Others 3,583.60 4,085.76 4,446.28
Total 358380 | 408570 4,446,28




Note 23 - Other Financial Liabilities

31.03.2017 | 31.03.2016 | 01.04.2015
t £ | L
Interest / Commitment Charges on Borrowings [Refer Note Mo, 23.1)
Accrued and due 34,294.11 23,332.28 15,364.58
Accrued but not due - T42.73 675.18
Pass Through Assistance agalnst JICA Loan [Refer Note No. 23.3) 11,788.73 2,183,094
Deposits
Earnest Maoney Depasits 569.61 4424 3811
Depasits recelved for Other Works 22.987.04 23.576.73 2.861.17
Security Deposits 52.48 60.00 16.32
Retention Money Payable (Refer Note No., 18.1) 2,606.67 3,183.57 2,176.89
Other Retention/ Recoveries
i} Retention towards Potential lquidated damages [Refer Note No.23.3) 8,358.33 3,568.98 3,320.26
il] Retention towards Potential penalties 2,316,283 2,132.33 1,337.31
iy Retention towards Performance security on terminated contracts 17.416.11 14,800.85 4,277.02
Payable for Capital Purchases 21,376.74 17,364 81 42,388.21
Dutios & Taxes 122555 1,235.17 137353
Total 122,992.20 92,225.63 | 73,828.58

23.1 Commitment charges & Interest payable (due & accrued) on borrowings represents the
amount payable on the Japan International Co-Operation Agency (1ICA) loan provided for as
pertheterms of the agreement. With regard to this payment, the company has made a
request to Ministry of Urban Development (MOUD) to postpone the payment of the same
after commencement of fulloperations, reply for the same is awaited.

23.2. The total pass through assistance sanctioned for the project is Rs. 8,64,600 lakhs. An amount
of Rs. 7,98,841.00 lakhs has been remitted by Ministry of Urban Development, MRTS Cell,
Government of India as Pass Through Assistance against JICA loan during the same period.
The Company sentclaims amounting to Rs.7,88,380.44 |akhs. The amount received as
advance PTAis shown under current liabilities.

23.3 Amount retained towards potential Liquidated damages amounting to Rs. 8,358.33 Lakhs
(Previous Year - Rs. 3,568.98 Lakhs) and potential penaities amounting to Rs. 2,316.83 Lakhs
{Previous Year-Rs. 2,132.33 Lakhs) which would be determined at the time of settlement of
final billor award of arbitration proceedings with the judicial authorities.

Note 24 - Other Current Liabilities

31.03.2017 31.03.2016 | 01.04.2015

i t | LS t
Advances Received 793,45 3167 104.97
Deferred Income -
Property Development Lease Rent 345.87 316.97 T7.03
Total 1,139.32 65E.64 182.00

MNote 25 - Provisions

31.03.2017 1.03.2016 | 0L

T £ t
Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note No. 41) 109.65 9238 | 54.45
Total 109.65 9238 | 54,46




Notes to the Financlal Staterents for the year ended 31st March 2017 [TinLakhs) (% in Lakhs)

Note 26 - Revenue from Operations 2016-17 2015-16
L1 L 1
From Traffic Dperations
Traffic Earningt 1,381.33 1,069 63
From Property Development
LeasefOther Income T44.41 241.04
Total 2,125.74 1310067
Nete 27 - Other Incame 2016-17 2015-16
t t
Interest Income
- on Deposits with Bank 11,004.51 11.551.04
- on Advances - 47.23
Less | intevest earned on Borrowed Funds {163.35) {450.45)
Government Grants (Refer Note No, 21.1) 3734 51.84
Project Supervision Fee : 347,70
Sale of Tender Documents . 1.03
Prafit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipmant 3.05 0.67
Miscellansgus incomay 5107 15.86
Total 11,269.22 | 11,564.92
Mote 28 - Operating Expenses 2016-17 2015-16
L t
Customer Facilitation Expenses £96.01 660.88
Electricity Charges 192578 1,13837
Total 2821719 | 1,799.25
Nate 29 - Employee Benefit Expenses W16-17 | 201516
£ t
OE M Exponses
Salsried & Wages 2,430.09 2,159,109
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 206.96 8781
Staff Welfare Expenses 405.98 160,86
Property Developmaent Expenditure
Salaries & Wages 53.36 50.27
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds . 351
Staff Welfare Expanses . 0.45
__Total 309639 | 246209
Note 30 - Finance Cost 2016-17 | 2015-16 |
L1 [ 1
Interest Expenies on JICA Loan & other Bank Charges 2,261.27 731.13
Total 2,261.27 73113




(¥inLakhs) (¥in Lakhs)
Note 31 - Other Expenses 2016-17 2015-16
L1 L4
Advertisement 488.68 212.08
Recruitment, Conference & Seminar / Sponsorship Expenses £38.20 0.9
Legal, Professional & Consultancy Charges 723.10 187.27
Community Interaction Programme & Meeting Expenses A425.58 B3.16
Miscellaneous Expenses 5.27 0.94
Insurance 0.00 0,13
Motor Car Expanses 32.52 35.79
Cutsourcing Expenses 42093 38040
Postage & Courlgr Expensas 1.74
Printing & Statlonery 75.90 56.90
Ratas & Taxes 61.18 0.29
Repairs & Maintenance 798.51 31162
Books & Periodicals .13
Statutory Audit fees - Towards Audit fee 4.50
Telephane Charges 13061 92.01
Travelling Expenses, Conveyance & Vehicke Hire Charges 433,15 375.25
Commission on sale of fixed assets 0.11 0.00
Sub-Total 3gB6.11 1786.63
" Property Development Expenditure l
Advertisement 30.42 16.02
Community Imeraction Programme B Meeting Expenses 014
Ratas & Tares 047 .03
Travelling Expenses, Convayance & Viehicle Hire Charges 032
Sub-Total 30.89 1651
TOTAL 3,717.00 |  1,803.14 |
Note 32 - Income Taxes 2016-17 2015-16
L4 £
A) Major Components of income Tax Expense for the Year
[i} income Tax recognised in the Statemeont of Profit and Loss
Current Tax
In respect of Current Year - -
Deferred Tax
In respict of Current Year 10,946.96 B,992.50
Total 10,946.96 6,992.50 |
B) Reconciliation of Tax Expense and Accounting Profit for the Year
Profit / (Loss) before Tax [9,354.14) (B0.61)
Enacted Income Tax Rate 30.90% 30.90%
Tax Expense [ (Gain) Calculated at applicable Rate {2,902.79) {24.91)
| Delerred Tou on Linutilised Tex 105185 nut recognised 1300975 | TOLTAL
10,946.96 6, 992.50

C) Unrecognised Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred Tax Asset on unused tax losses incurred during the year and the previous year, as detailed
hereunder, has not been recognised in the books of account as a matter of prudence

Financial Year - 31.03.2017 | 31.03.2016
Linabsorbed Depreciation - FY 15-16 11.6E7.87 21 68787 |
Unabsorbed Depreciation - FY 16-17 44,821.19 l
Total 67,509.06 12,687.87




Difference batween

D) Major Components of Deferred Tax Liabilities / Assets Mmﬁh
as per books of Account and
income Tax Act, 1961
2016-17 2015-16
Balance Sheet - Opening 7,009.19 16.69
PRL - Recognised during the year 10,946 96 6, 99250
Balance Sheet - Ehdr_! 17,956.15 7,005,189
Note 33 - Earnings Per Share 2016-17 2015-16
Earnings
- Profit after Tax As per Statement of PEL [Rs in lakhs) {20,341.09) {7.073.10)
Shares
= Number of Shares lssued & pald-up at the Beginning of the Year 39,010,690 | 39,010,690

= Mumber of Equivalent Shares in respect of
Share Application Maney Pending Allatment as &t the beginning of the year 4,325 582 3,112,882
= Number of Equivalent Shares in respect of

Share Application Money received during the year 531,500 1,212,700
Total 48,267,772 | 43,336,272
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 43,555,749 | 42623894
Earnings per Share - Basic & Diluted [Amount In Rs.} (46.70) (16.59)

Face Value [ Share - Rs. 1,000




Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2017

(CinLakhs]  (tinLakhs)  (in Lakhs)
Note 34A - Category Wise Classification of Financial Instruments 31.03.2017 | 31.03.2016  01.04.2015
Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost
Non - Currgnt
Deposits 433.17 337.82 135.95
Current
Trade Recevables ARZ30 Tr.ds -
Cash & Cash Equivalents 130,114.02 183,650.50 | 121,310.77
Other Bank Balances 532.00 51646 500.00
VAT / Stamp Duty Recoverable 11,341.21 11,097.12 14,015.97
imerest Accrued On Deposits with Bank 2,425.85 1,733.43 329.84
Pass Through Assistance agalnst JICA Loan - - T4,032.16
Other Deposits / Aeceivables 1983 16 6,62067 | 4 19664
149,211.71 185,033.25 | 214,621.32
Financlal Liabilitles Measured at Amortised Cost i
Mon - Current
Borrowings from JICA - Senior Term Debt TET.052.27 B98,657.06 532,8R2.73
Subordinate Debt from Governmaent of India 31,125.92 19,359.96 28, 745.00
Subordinate Debt from Government of Tamil Nadu 270,565.33 26567108 | 264,100.37
Retention money payahle 21,068.91 22,254.19 20,311.19
Security Deposits 546.03 381.72 139.33
Others 145.08 198.09 198.09
Current
Trade Payables 3.583.60 4,085.76 i 46 28
Interest f Commitment Charges pavable on Borrewings 34.294.11 24,075.01 16,039.76
Pass Through Asskstance agalnst IICA Loan 11,788.73 2,183.94 =
Depasits 23,609.14 73,680.96 2,915.60
Retention Money Payable 2,606.67 3,183.57 2,176.89
Other Retention [/ Recoveries 28,091.26 20,502.16 B,934.59
Payabie for Capltal Purchases 21,376.14 17.364.81 42,388.21
Duties & Taxes 1,225.55 123517 1,373.53
1,237,01933 |1,112,843.49 | 924,651.48

34.1 The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost in the
financial statements are a reasonable approximation of their fair values since the Company
does notanticipate that the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the

values that would eventually be received or settled.

Note 34B - Financial Risk Management - Objectives & Policies

The Company'’s financial liabilities comprise mainly of borrowings, trade payables and other
payables. The Company’s financial assets comprise mainly of cash and cash equivalents,
other balanceswith banks, trade receivables and other receivables [/ recoverables. The
Company is exposed to Market risk, Credit risk and Liquidityrisk. The Board of Directors
("Board’) oversee the management of these financial risks through the functional directors.
The key managerial personnel of the company lays down the broad structure for managing
risk and the framewaork for risk management. The framework seeks toidentify, assess and
mitigate financial risks In order toe minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's

financial performance.



The following disclosures summarize the Company’s exposure to financial risks,
(1) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of mainly two types of risks:
interest rate risk and currency risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk includes
borrowings, trade payables, trade receivables, other receivables / payables, etc.

(i} Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument wil|
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Since the Company has no borrowings other
than from Gol, GoTN and JICA, the exposure to risk of changes in market interest rates is minimal.
Further, the interest rate on JICA loans are fixed for the tenure of the loan and is not subject to any
changes. Accordingly, the Company has not used any interest rate derivatives.

{ii) Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will
fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The company has significant foreign currency
exposures (both existing liabilities and firm commitments) in the form of JICA loan and payable for
project vendors. However, as per the Mol entered into between Gol, GoTN and the company, it is
agreed that any cost escalation due to change in exchange rates would be borne by Gol and GoTN.
Therefare, this risk is also perceived to be minimal. Accordingly, the company has not entered into
any derivative contracts to hedge against its foreign currency exposures relating to the recognised
underlying liabilities and firm commitments.

(2) Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Company. Credit risk arises primarily from financial assets such as trade
receivables, other balances with banks, and other receivables. Since there is no concept of credit
in case of traffic revenue, there is negligible or no credit risk as far as this stream of revenue Is
concerned.
With respect to the receivables in case of property development contracts, the Company has
adopted a policy of only dealing with counterparties that have sufficiently high credit rating.
Wherever possible, the payment terms are structured in the company's favour and the amounts
are mostly required to be paid in advance. Also, all contracts have a security deposit clause
requiring an amount to be deposited with the company or a guarantee of equivalent amount to be
given which further reduces the credit risk. The Company's exposures are continuously monitored
and the aggregate value of transactions is reasonably spread amongst the counter parties. Credit
risk arising from investment in balances with banks is limited and there is no collateral held against
these because the counterparties are recognised financial institutions with high credit ratings
{banks).

(3) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet
commitments associated with financial instruments that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Company has an established liquidity risk management framework for
managing its short term, medium term and long term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Company’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the
maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Company manages the liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate funds in cash and cash equivalents. As per the Mol, the project cost for
metro project is funded by a mix of equity, povernment subordinate debt and senior term debt
from JICA,
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The company evaluates its annual cash flow requirements well in advance to facilitate appropriate
and timely funding from Gol/ GoTN in the form of equity/ subordinate debt to mitigate any
potential liquidity risks. The risk associated with delay in processing of JICA loan claims is also
offset to a large extent by the Pass Through Assistance (PTA) mechanism of MoUD. Further, as per
the Mol, incase CMRL's is unable to pay the senior term debt availed from JICA, the same shall be
repaid by the state government.

Therefare, in view of the substantial funding from government and considering the structured
system in place for fund evaluation, monitoring and utilisation, only a low level of liquidity risk is
perceived.

MNote 35- FIRST TIME ADOPTION

Far all periods up to and including the year ended 31st March, 2016, the Company had prepared its
financial statements in accordance with the accounting standards notified under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013, read together with Rule 7 of the Companies [Accounts) Rules, 2014
('Previous GAAP'). This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating
its financial statements prepared under Previous GAAP for the following

(a} Balance Sheetasat 1stApril, 2015 [Transition date)

(b) BalanceSheetasat31st March, 2016

(c) Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31st March, 2016, and

(d) Statement of Cash Flows for the Year ended 315t March, 2016, and
EXEMPTIONS AVAILED
Ind AS 101 - First-time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, allows first-time adopters,
exemptions from the retrospective application and exemption from application of certain
requirements of other Ind AS. The Company has availed the following exemptions as per Ind AS 101:

1. The Company has elected to consider the carrying value of all its itemns of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets recognised in the financial statements prepared under Previous
GAAP and use the same as deemed cost in the opening Ind AS Balance Sheet,

2. The requirements of Ind AS 20 - Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance and Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments, in respect of recognition and
measurement of interest free loans from Government authorities is applied prospectively to all
grants received after the date of transition to Ind AS in view of the mandatory exception under Ind
AS 101, Consequently, the carrying amount of such interest free loans as per the financial
statements of the Company prepared under the previous GAAP is considered for recognition in
the opening Balance Sheet (01.04.15)

Footnotes to Reconciliation between previous IGAAP and adoption of Ind AS

35A Subordinate debt from Gol / GoTN (Interest free loan - Government Grant)

In the financial statements prepared under previous | GAAP, the carrying value of interest free loan
was recognised at the principal amounts payable by the borrower. Under Ind AS , interest free
loans being a financial liability is required to be recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The difference between such fair
value and the carrying value is recognised as Deferred Government Grants.

On the date of transition, there is no change in the amount of Interest free loan since the Company
has opted for exemption from retrospective application for fair valuation of such financial
instruments [Refer Note No. 35). Interest free loan amounting to Rs.24,798.58 lakhs received

&
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subsequent to the date of transition to has been recognised at fair value amounting to
Rs.2,185.77 lakhs. The difference between the loan proceeds and fair value amounting to
Rs.22,612.81 lakhs has been recognised as Deferred Government Grant. All loans recelved during
a year are aggregated and considered as recelved as at the end of the year and hence there is no
effect arising from subsequent measurement ason 31st March, 2016.

The above changes do not effect Equity as at the date of transition to and as at 31st March, 20186.
However, it has resulted in decrease in borrowings and increase in the Government Grants by
Rs.22,612.81lakhsas at 31st March, 2016,

The Company has considered the notional interest rate of State Bank of India marginal cost
lending rate (MCLR) for three yearsi.e. 8.15% which is maximum market rate available.

358 Land received as gift (Government Grant)

In the financial statements prepared under previous GAAP, land received as gift from Government
recognised as capital reserve. Under Ind AS 20, the same is required to be accounted as
government grant by way of setting up as deferred income. On account of this treatment, capital
reserve on the date of transition (1st April, 2015) is reduced by Rs.386.54 lakhs and deferred
income is increased by an equivalent amount, In subsequent years, the grant is recognised in the
Statement of Profit or Loss based on the proportion of depreciation charged in Profit and Loss to
the total cost of the project (excluding non-depreciable assets).
The above change has resulted in an increase in other income for FY 2015-16 by Rs.1.39 lakhs.
Further, other equity as on the transition date is also reduced by Rs.386.54 lakhs as a result of the
above change

35C Grantrelating to depreciable asset- Reimbursement of TN VAT and Stamp Duty
In the financial statements prepared under previous GAAP, grants being reimbursement of Taxes
and Duties relating to project fixed assets and other fixed assets were recognised by way of
adjustment against the gross value of the fixed assets. Under Ind AS 20, all government grants
related to Property, Plant and Equipment are initially set up as deferred income and subseguently
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis. Accordingly, deferred income
{Government Grant) has increased by Rs.19,314,56 lakhs (1st April, 2015 - Rs. 14,014.70 lakhs)
with corresponding increase in the value of the Property, Plant and Equipment by Rs.6.44 lakhs
(1st April, 2015 - Nil) and capital work in progress (CWIP) by Rs. 19,308.12 lakhs
(1st April, 2015 - Rs.14,014.70 lakhs)
In subsequent years, the grant is recognised the Statement of Profit or Loss based on the
proportion of depreciation charged in Profit and Loss to the total cost of the project (excluding
non-depreciable assets). The above treatment has increased the other income by Rs.50.45 lakhs
during the yearended 31st March, 2016.

35D Security deposits

Under the previous GAAP, interest free lease security deposits (that are refundable in cash on
completion of the |ease term) were recorded at their transaction value, Under Ind AS, all financial
instruments are required to be recognised at fair value. Accordingly, the company has determined
the fair value of these security deposits based on the present value of these deposits as on the
date of transition (01.04.2015), Difference between the fair value and transaction value of such
security deposits is recognised as advance rental income. Such advance rental income is
recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss on a straight line basis over the lease period. Further,
such security deposits are subsequently measured at amortised cost under effective interest
method.



Consequent to this change, there is a decrease in the amount of security deposits by
Rs. 318.46 lakhs as at 31 March 2016 {1 April 2015 - Rs. 77.03 lakhs) and an increase in Deferred
Income - Property Development Lease Rent (Advance Rent) by 316.97 Lakhs (1st April 2015 -
Rs. 77.03 Lakhs) Further, the profit for the year ended and total equity as at 31 March 2016 has
increased by Rs. 12.84 lakhs due to amortisation of the prepaid rent of Rs.77.03 lakhs which is
partially off-set by the interest expenditure of Rs. 11.36 lakhs recognised on security deposits.

35E Priorperioditems
During FY 15-16, reversal of excess depreciation charged in the earlier years amounting to
Rs.13.06 Lakhs was recognized as a prior period income as per previous GAAP. Under IND AS, prior
period errors and reclassification are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative
amounts for prior periods presented in which the reclassification is required / error occurred or if
the error occurred before the earliest period presented, by restating the opening statement of
financial position. Accordingly, the above adjustment has been made in the opening balance
sheet as on 1st April, 2015 with corresponding impact in the carrying value of Property, Plant and
Equipment as on this date.
The above change has effect Equity as at date of transition to IND AS at 01.04.2015 to the extent of
Rs.13.06 lakhs with consequent Impact in opening carrying value of property plant and
equipment,

35F OtherChangesdue toadoption of IND AS

(i)Remeasurement gain [ (loss) of defined benefit obligations - Gratuity
Hitherto, gratuity to employees which has been funded with LIC was being considered as a defined
contribution plan. During the year, the company has decided to recognize gratuity as a defined
benefit plan in accordance with Ind AS 19. In Accordance with Ind AS 8, the impact of the above
change in accounting policy has been given in the opening balance sheet of earliest comparative
period presented, l.e., 1st April, 2015, Accordingly, based on report obtained from an
independent actuary, opening balance of provision for gratuity (net) as on 1st April, 2015
amounting to Rs, 30.61 Lakhs have been recognised in the opening balance sheet as on 1st April,
2015 with corresponding effect in retained earnings.
As a result of the above change, gratuity expense charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss for the
year ended 31st March, 2017 is higher by Rs. 8.56 Lakhs (PY Rs. 6.80 Lakhs). Further,
remeasurement loss recognised in Other Comprehensive Income during the year is Rs. 3.99 Lakhs
(PY Rs. 6.19 Lakhs).

(i) Reclassification of Leasehold Land
Hitherto, amount payable to obtain permission to cross Railway land conveyed by way of
agreement with Railways in this regard was being considered as a Tangible Asset and depreciated
over the term of such agreement which is taken as 70 years considering the initial period of 35
years and also a further period of 35 years being the extension available in the agreement by
payment of nominal charges.
The company has re-evaluated the classification of such lands under Ind AS 17 - Leases based on
which, it has been decided to re-classify the same as an Intangible Asset since it is in the nature of
permission to cross rallway land. Accordingly, the carrying value of such assets as on 1st April, 2015
has been reclassified and disclosed as Intangible Assets, with consequent reclassification in the
financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2017 and 31st March, 2016. As a result of such
reclassification, carrying value of Tangible Assets as on 1st April, 2015, 31st March, 2016 and

- ©



31st March, 2017 is respectively lower by Rs. 44,390.59 Lakhs, Rs.43,721.18 Lakhs and
Rs. 43,377.14 Lakhs with corresponding increase in the carrying value of Intangible Assets as on
those dates.

Such intangible assets is amortised over the period of 70 years as stated above. Since there Is no
change in the useful life, there is no impact on the statement of Profit or Loss as a result of this re-
classification.

36. Capital Management

The Company is a Joint venture between Government of Tamil Nadu (GaTN) and Government of
India (Gol), incorporated as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) for the purpose of construction of
Metro Rail Netwaork in the City of Chennai. The primary objective of the Company is to provide an
affordable mode of publictransport,

The ownership of the Company and financing of the project is as per a tripartite Memorandum of
Understanding dated 15th February 2011(the Mol) entered into between Gol, GoTN and CMRL.
As per the MoU, CMRLwill be jointly promoted by Gol and GoTN with equal equity holding.

The capital structure of the company comprises of equity share capital and debts. The financing of
the project is done through a mix of equity, interest free sub-ordinate debt, and senior term debt
from Japan International Co-operation Agency (JICA).

The Company's capital consists of equity capital and other equity attributable to shareholders of
the Company. As stated above, the shares of the company are held in equal proportion by the
Government of India and Government of Tamil Nadu. The Company being a Government
Company, the requisite levels of equity and debt which it has to maintain is determined based on
Government directions in this respect that are issued on time to time basis, which is broadly
determined based on the project finance requirements and other sources of long term finance,

37. Contingent liabilities:
37.1. Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:
37.1.1. Legal related matters

Sl.No | Particulars J 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015

1 i Legal Cases 153 cazes 127 cases 126 cases [including 4

| . cases towards arbitration) |
i Enhanced Compensation '

for the land - 074,099 Lakhs ? 53,149 Lakhs ? 52,664 Lakhs
Compensation for other '
I claims and damages | £29,195 Lakhs ¥ 59.00 Lakhs ¥ 71.93 Lakhs
4, | Arbitration Cases® | 11 Cases 11 Cases ? 35,589.69 Lakhs
t4,14,169 lakhs T1,41,586 lakhs [Counter claims-
(Countar Claims - |  [Countor Claims - t 40,441.18 Lakhs

| £1,61,012 lakhs) ¥ 35,731.98 lakhs)

in respe:t of contracts terminated, the balance work has been awarded to new contractors.
Arbitration proceedings have been initiated and all additional cost to be incurred, on the award of
the balance works to new contractors, Is being claimed from the erstwhile contractors who have
been terminated. An amount of Rs. 3, 33,695 Lakhs has been claimed in respect of six terminated
contracts in respect of which counter claims have been made amounting to Rs. 1,60,944 Lakhs.

In respect of ongoing contracts arbitration proceedings have been initiated on 3 contracts and
Rs. 80,474 Lakhs has been claimed in respect of two contracts and counter claims have been made



amounting to Rs. 68 Lakhs against this and claims and counter have not been ascertained in
respect of the third contract. The net amount, if any, will be accounted for on final determination
of arbitration proceedings.

In respect of Arbitration cases, award was given for two claims amounting to Rs. 10,663 lakhs and
the company has gone on appeal Inthe High Court of Madras.

37.1.2. Statutory Related Matters

Sl ng Particulars 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
21 | DemandfromESiCdepartment | ®11.771lakhs | ®1177lakhs | R11.77 lakhs
F 4 Demand raised by Sales tax department for
not reporting of imported goods . . £ 27.30 Lakhs
3 Demand from Tamil Nadu
Construction Warkers Welfare Board towards
Cess and nberast i . . ¥ 832 Lakhs
4 Bemand from Income Tax Department
FY2011-12 - - R 58.62 Lakhs
5 Demand of Tax deducted & source under
Chapter XVII- FY 2007-08 ¥ 0.07 lakhs € 0.07 Lakhs ¥ 0.08 Lakhs
[ Demand of Tax deducted @ source under
Chapter XVIl- FY 2009-10 | €016 Lakhs % 0.16 Lakhs € 0.16 Lakhs
7 Damand of Tax deductod @ source under
Chapter XVIi- FY 2010-11 T0.08 Lakhs R0.08 Lakhs | U682 Lakhs
B Demand of Tax deducted & source under
Chopter XVIi- FY 2011-12 [ 647 Lakhs t6.47 Lakhs T EE7 Lakhs
b Bemand of Tax deducted @ source under
Chapter XVII- FY 2012-13 £0.17 Lakhs 0.17 Lakhs € 2.19 Lakhs
37.2. Relief & Rehabilitation Activities :
Claims anticipated in respect of Relief and Rehabilitation activities
Rs.1,816Lakhs(31.03.16-Rs. 1,826.42 Lakhs, 01.04.15-Rs. 1,826.42)
37.3. Letters of Guarantees
As at the Balance sheet date the company has provided bank guarantees amounting to
Rs.1.00Lakh {31.03.16~ Rs. 1.00 Lakh, 01.04.2015 - Rs. 2.30 Lakhs)
37.4. Lettersof Credit
As at the Balance Sheet date, the commitments towards Letters of Credit on account of
procurement of depot Machineries have been fully discharged by the company.
(31.03.16 —Rs.161.91 Lakhs, 01.04.15 - Rs. 279.89 Lakhs).
38. Capital & Other Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account and not
provided for (excluding any escalation as provided in the terms of the contracts)
Rs. 1,85,696.30 Lakhs (31.03.16-Rs. 2,46,220.98 Lakhs, 01.04.15 - Rs, 5,46,910.54 Lakhs).
39. Segment Reporting
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The company functions in a single business segment which Is operation and maintenance
of Metro Rail Facility in Chennai. Other operating revenues including rental income
earned in respect of Property Development (PD) assets is considered as an integral part
the company’s primary business under the internal decision making and performance
measurement process of the company.

In view of the above, there are no separate operating segments under Ind AS 108.




40. Information on Related Party transactions as required by Ind AS 24 -
Related Party disclosures’ for the year ended 31st March, 2017

The Company Is a Government Company within the meaning of Section 2{45) of the
Companies Act 2013 (Section 617 of the Companies Act, 1956). Details of the related parties

are disclosed below:
a) Details of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Directors
Si.Ng. Name of the Director Designation From To
1 | Shri Rajiv Gauba, IAS Chairman / Nominee Director of GO 01-04-2016 Till date
2. Shri K K Aggarwal Director / Nomines Director of GO D6-02-2014 Till date
| 3. | SheShoratSharma | Director/Nominee Directorof GOl |  15:04-2013 |  Tildate
4. | ShriMukund Kumar Sinha Director / Nominee Director of GOI 23:12-2013 Till date
5. | Shri Praveen Goyal Directar / Nominee Director of GO 07-12-2015 Till date
B. Shrl Panka) Kumar Bansal, ms I:Hrfl:ldr! Bomines Director of GoTN 20-12-2013 Till date
7. O, B Chandra Mahan, LAS Director / Nomines Director of GoTH 20-01-7016 04-07-2016
B | Shri K Shanmugam, IAS Director / Nominee Director of GoTN 18-05-2010 Tili date
8. | Shei S Krishnan, 1AS Director / Nominee Director of GoTN | 18-01-2011 Til date
10. | Shri Rajeey Ranjan, LAS Director / Nomines Director of GoTN JE-06-2013 Til date
11. | Dr. D Karthikeyan, IAS Director f Nominee Director of GoTN 04-07-2016 Till date
12. | Shri L Marasim Prasad Whole-time Director 01-02-2013 Tili date
13. | Smt Sujatha layaraj Whole-time Director 17-05-2016 Till date
14. | Shrl Rajeev Narayan Dwivedl | ‘Whole-time Director O1-06-2016 Till date
15. | Smt Lma R Krishnan Independent Director 31-10-2016 Till date
16. | Smt Usha Sankar Independent Diractor 31-10-2016 Till date
b) Details of related party transactions during the year
| Particulars | 2016-17 2015-16
Remuneration to KMP | €105.81 Lakhs 99,20 Lakhs

Details of Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel f Directors

Shri Panka] Kumar Bansal, Managing Director

€ 23.42 Lakhs (PY- ¥ 19.28 Lakhs) {including F5C
contribution for the FY £ 2.10 lakhs)

b,

Smit Sujatha Javaral, Director

¥ 25.29 Lakhs (PY- NIl

.| 5hri Rajeev Narayan Dwived|, Director

¥ 22.10 Lakhs (PY¥- Nil)

| d

Shri L. Narasim Prasad, Director

T 35.00 Lakhs (PY- ¥ 25.23 Lakhs]

41.
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Disclosure as per Ind AS 19 - Employee benefits

41.1. Defined Contribution Plans

Provident Fund : The Company has made equal contribution towards Voluntary EPF scheme.
The expense is recognized on accrual basis.

Pension: The Company's pension Scheme is linked with voluntary provident fund Scheme.
All employees of Company’s under EPF scheme are also covered under EP Scheme. Under this
scheme, no contribution is collected from employees and out 12% of employer contribution under
PF scheme B.33% is covered under EP Scheme and Rs. 7.01 Lakhs is created as liability towards
Pension contribution payable to deputation employees.
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Particulars 2016-17 2015-16 |

Contribution to Provident Fund 206.95 B7.81 |

Employee benefits due to Deputationists are paid to their respective organizations / Employer
from where they have been deputed based on the direction given by their organizations. In
respect of deputation employees, contribution towards provident fund, pension and leave salary
cantribution are made as per the directions provided by respective departments. In case of
gratuity, for eligible employees they are paid / provided by the respective organizations from
where they have been deputed,

41.2, Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity (Funded)

The company has a defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees, which requires contributions
to be made to a separately administered trust. It is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.
Under the Act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit.
The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement
age. Gratuity Plan is funded by Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) [Also Refer Note 35{i}].

Each year, the Board of Trustees and the Company review the level of funding in the gratuity
plan, Such a review includes the asset-liability matching strategy and assessment of the
investment risk. The Company decides its contribution based on the results of this annual review.

The aforesaid defined benefit plan typically exposes the Company to actuarial risks such as;
investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk, as detailed below

mvestment Risk The present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated using a
discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end
of the reporting period on government bonds.

Interest Risk A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability;
however, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the
plan's investments. N

Longevity Risk The present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated by reference
ta the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during
and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan
participants will increase the plan's liability.

Salary Risk The present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated by reference
to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in salary of
the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.




The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of defined
obligation were carried out as at 31st March, 2017 by Actuarial Valuer. The present value of the
defined benefit obligation and thel related current service cost were measured using the
projected unit credit method. The details of Gratuity Liability as per the said valuation report is as

follows
Employee Data Summary
31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Number of Members 356 59
Total Menthly Salary on which encashment of
Gratuity is Based {fs in lakhs) 140.98 130.13
Weighted Average Age (based on Accrued Gratulty) 36.64 35.71
Past Service 3.60 2.76
Average Salary [Rs in lakis) 0.40 0.36
Principal Actuarial Assumptions
31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Discount Rate as at Year end 7.40% 7.70%
Expected Return on Plan Assets as at Year End 7.40% 1.70%
Annial Increase in Salary Cost 7.00% 7.00%
Artrition Rate 5.00% 5.00%
| Mortality indian Assured Lives indian Assured Lives
Martality [Z006-08) Mortality (2D06-08)
Amounts to be recognised In Balance sheet {Rs.in Lakhs)
31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Amounts recognised in the balance sheet
Liabilities 308.92 214.92

| Asseis 314,19 232.74
Net liability (5.28) (17.82)
Expense Recognised in PRL Account during the year {As.in Lakhs)

| ) 31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Current service cost 76.70 66.20
Net interest on net Defined liability/{Asset) {3.63) {3.40)
Total 73.07 61.81

___Expense Recognised in Other comprehensive income (Rs.0n

31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Actuarial (Gains) / losses on Hability 3.34 177
Return on Plan assets excluding amount included in
‘Nt Interest an net Defined llability / (Assot)' above 0.65 4.42
Total 3.99 6.19
Table Showing change in Benefit Obligation {Rs.in Lakhs)

- . 31-03-2007 31-03-2016
Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 214,92 138.55
Seivice Cost for the Year 7670 66,20
Interest Cost for the Year 15,90 10,67
Actuarial Losses / [gains) 3.34 1.7
Benefits paid {1.94 (2.27)
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 308,52 14.92
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Bifurcation of Actuarial Losses / (Gains) _[Rs.in Lakhs]
31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Actuarial Losses/ [gains) arising from
| Changes in Financial Assumptions 12.60 877
Actuarial Losses/ (gains) arising from
Experience Adjustments {9.26) {7.00)
Actuarial Losses/ [gains} - Total 3.34 177
Sensitivity Analysis of Defined Benefit Obligation with References to Key Assumptions
{Rs.in Lakhs)
31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Discount
1% Increase 26%9.89 187.74
1% Decreasa A57.47 24873
Salary Escalation Rate
1% Increase 35717 248.63
1% Decrease 269.43 187.35
Withdrawal Rate
1% Increase 310.75 217.22
1% Decrease 06,75 212.18
Expected Undiscounted Benefit Payments in Future Years {Rs.In Lakhs)
31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Year 1 B.73 0.30
fear 2 16.24 5.07
Year 3 13.84 11.39
Year 4 9.94 10.08
Yoar 5 15.17 7.05
Year 61a 10 75,52 53.30
Tables of Fair Value of Plan Assets {Rs.in Lakhs)
31-03-2017 31-03-2016
ﬂpi!l'llni Fair Value of Plan Assets 232.74 165.16
Expected Retumn 19,54 15.06
Actuarial Gains / (Losses) (0.65]) {4.42)
Contributions by Employer 6451 55,21
Banefits Pald {1.94) {2.27)
Closing Balance of Fund 314.19 23274
Table Showing Surplus / (Deficit) {Rs.in Lakhs)
31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Defined Benefit Obligation 308,92 21492
Plan Assets 314.18 23274
Surplus/ (Deficits) 5.28 17.82
Table Showing bifurcation of Present Benefit Obligation as at the end of the year
[Rs.in Lakhs}
31-03-2007 31-03-2016
Current Liability {Amount due within 1 year}) B.73 380
MNaon- Current Liabifity (Amount due more than ane year} 300,19 211.12
Surplus f [Deficits) 308.92 21492




Table Showing Category of Plan Assets

31-03-2017 31-03-2016
Fund Managed by Insurer 100% 100%

41.3. Other Long-Term Employee Benefits - Leave Encashment (unfunded)

Leave Encashment: As per HR policy of the company, each eligible employee is credited with 20
days of earned leave and 20 days of half pay leave each year. In case of earned leave, only 50% of
leave balance in leave account can be encashed once in a calendar year. The liability on this
account is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation. The accounts include
-a provision for an amount of Rs, 286.68 Lakhs towards Leave Salary payable on the basis of
actuarial valuation to company’s employees and Rs. 7.56 Lakhs payable to Deputationists,
Assumptions of actuarial valuation are as follows

Privilege Leave Benefits

Financial assumptions

Discount rate - 740 %

Salary escalation rate - 7.00%

Retirement Age - B years

Withdrawal rate - 5% at younger ages and reducing to 1% at older ages according to graduated scale

Martality rate - |ndian Assured Lives Marality (2006-08) Uit
Amounts to be recognized in Balance Sheet Amount (In  Lakhs.) Amount [in ¢ Lakhs.)
Liablfities 286,68 202,80
Ascels - =
Met Liabdlity 286.68 202.80
Amounts to be recognized in Profit & Loss Account Amount {in ¥ Lakhs.) Amount (in ¥ Lakhs.}
Current service cost 7161 58,79
Net interest on net Defined Liability / [Asset) 15.01 9.84
Actuarial [Gains) / Losses on Liability 25.65 34,19
Return on Plan Assets excluding amount included in
‘Net |nterest on net Defined Liability / {Asset) above - -
Expense recognized In PEL account 112.27 10283
Table Showing Change in Benefit Obligation Amount (in ¥ Lakhs.) Amaunt (in ¥ Lakhs.)
Opening Defined Benefit Obligation
on 01.04 2016/ 01.04,15 20280 127.90
Service cost for the year T161 58,79
Interest cost for the year 15.01 9.84
| Actuarial losses (gains) 25.65 34,19
Benefits paid {28.40) [27.93)
Closing defined benefit obligation
| on31.03.2017 / 31.03,2016 286.68 202 .80
Bifurcation of Actuarial losses / (gains) Amount (in € Lakhs.) Amount (in ¢ Lakhs.)
Actuarial losses (gains) ansing from
change in financial assumptions 111 7.85
Actuarial lasses (gains] arising from
change in demographic = =
Actuarial losses [gains) arising from
experience adjustments 14.44 26.34
Total Actuarial losses (gaina) 25.65 34,19




2017 2016 2017 2017
Sensitivity analysis of defined benefit 1%increase | 1%increase | 1% decrease | 1% decrease
obligation with references to key Amount Amount Amount Amount
Assumptions (inTlakhs) | {in%lakhs) | {in¥Llakhs) | (in® Lakhs.)
Oiscount Rate 251.87 178.41 329.74 232 89
_EHIIW B:alahm Rate 32947 232,79 251.4% 178.06
Withdrawal Rate 288.26 182.16 284,80 173.35

41.4. Other Long-Term Employee Benefits - Leave Travel Concession (unfunded)

Employees and their family members are eligible, once during a period of 2 calendar years, for
Leave Travel Concession to travel to their home town by the shortest / direct route. Also, they are
eligible for travel to any place in India once in a block of 4 calendar years. The mode of transport
entitled to employees is based on their designation, IfLTC other than home town is not availed the
employee is entitled to avail LTC for home town 3 times in a block of 4 calendar years.

Concession not availed in a particular block of 4 years can be carried forward and availed in the
first year of the succeeding block. A employee whose family is living away from headquarters may
avail of the concession for himself along once in every year for visiting his home town.

Mo ol members o )

| (Employees and eligible family members) | 1387
Financial assumptions;
Discount Rate | 7.40%
Rate of growth in cost of travel {across various modes of transport]! 5.00 %
Demographic assumptions
Retirement Age B0

L R T ———

The liability on account of Leave Travel concession Benefits as on 31.03.2017 works out to
Rs. 356.89 lakhs.

41.5. Other Long Term Employee Benefits - Leave Travel Concession Half - pay leave
Company allows entitlement of hallf Pay leave to all eligible employees at the rate of 20 days
for every year of service and the unutilized portion can be carried forward without any upper limit.

An employee availing half pay leave is entitled to receive salary equal to the half of basic + DA
components of salary. However, Other allowance and paid in full. The maximum half pay leave that
can be availed at a time is 24 months, Half pay Leave can be encashed by the employees subject to
Leave Rules.

Employee data
Mo. of members 353
_Total monthly salary - Gross 118121616
Total Half pay Leave days 13,296
Weighted average age 36.68
_Ayerage past service 361
Average salary = Gross 51,336
Financial Assumptions
__Discountfiate _— | _740%
Rate of growth of Gross Salary | 7.00%




Retirerment Age &0
Withdrawal Rate: L% at younger ages and reducing to 1% at older ages according to graduated scale
Martality Rate Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) Uit

The Half Pay Leave Liability as on 31.03.2017 works out to Rs. 115.50 Lakhs.

42. The company recognizesimpairment of assets when the same Is permanent in nature and the
assetisincapable of being rectified / repaired for use. During the year the company has not
impaired any assets.

43. Debit [/ credit balances of parties are subject to confirmation and reconciliation,
consequential impact thereof, if any, remains unascertained.

44. Value of Imports calculated on CIF basis
Towards Import of Capital items— Rs. 6178.50 Lakhs (PY - Rs. 13,290.47 Lakhs)

45. Pursuant to Ind AS 17 - Leases, the following information is disclosed

45.1. Assets given on operating leases

45.1.1. The Company has given only one property under non-cancellable cperating lease in
respect of which, the entire lease rental has been collected upfront. Accordingly,
there are nofuture lease rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases.

45.1.2. Other operating leases entered into by the company are cancellable in nature and
hence, the amount of future minimum lease rentals with respect to the same are not
disclosed. The lease rentals are received in accordance with the terms of the specific
contracts.

45.1.3. Lease Income recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss Rs. 694.41 Lakhs
{PY Rs. 241.04 Lakhs)

45.2. Assetstakenonoperatingleases

45.2.1. The Company has not entered into any non-cancellable operating leases and hence,
the amount of future minimum lease rentals with respect to the same are not
disclosed. The lease rentals are payable by the Company on a periodic basis as per
the terms of the contract.

45.2.2. Lease payments recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss for the year is
Rs.35.06 Lakhs (Previousyear Rs. Nil)

46. Specified bank notes (SBNs) held and transacted during the period from 8th November

2016 to30th December 2016

Total cash transactions

Particulars SHNs Other denomination '
nobes Total |

Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.7016 3,56,000.00 10,14,658.50 13.70,658.50 |

{+) Permitted receipts 35,80, 500,00 1.52.38.651.00 1,68.19.151.00 I

{-) Permitted payments = B, 77.895.00 8,77,895.00 |

{=) Amaunt deposited n banks 49,36 50000 1,39, 20.556.00 1,78.57.056.00

Closing cash in hand as on 30.12.2016 NIL 14 54 858 50 14 54 85850 |

&



CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2017
47, Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards

471 Effect of IND AS adoption on the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016 [Rupees in lakhs)
Effect of Ind AS adoption Effect of Transition
on the Balance Sheet as at Footnotes Frevious GAAF to Ind AS / Other Ind AS
31st March, 2016 Adjustments
ASSETS
{1) Non-current assets
Progerty, Plant and Equipment 35¢, 350 and £25916.73 [43,714.74) 482,201.99
35
Capital work-in-progress. 35¢c BER 324.26 19,308.12 BE7632.38
Intangible assets ASf{ii) 12.09 43,721.18 43,733.76
Financial Assets
(i} Othar Financlal Assets 337.82 3av.82
Current Tax Assets [Net) 1,588.18 - 1,588.18
Cthier Mon Current assets 18, 217.96 oLl 18,217 96
(2) Current assets -
Imdentories G4, 20 - 64,40
Financial Assets -
(I} Trade Recehables Tr.as 1725
(i} Cash and cash equivalents 163,650.51 (0.00] 163,650.50
(ill} Other Bank balances 516.46 - L16.46
(iv) Other Financial Assets 20,451.22 [0.00) 20,451.22
Current Tax Assets [net) 1.202.58 - 1,202.58
Other current assets ELE]] 51117 17.82 L28.99
Total Assets 1,600,870.61 19,332.38 1,620,202.99
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share capital 390,106.90 . 390,106.90
Other equity 15h, 35e, 35d 67,262.02 {315.38) £5,946.64
and 35f(i)
LIABILITIES
(1) Non-current liabilities
Flnancial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 35a 1.016,300.91 [22,612.81) 993,688.10
(i) Dther financial labilities aod 23,152.45 [318.48) 43,844,000
Provisions 28370 - ZB3.70
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 7,009.1% . 7,009.1%
Other Non-Current Liabilities 35a, 35b & 35¢ . 42,262.06 42,262.06
{2} Current liabilities
Financial Liabifities
(i} Trade payables 4,085.76 - 4,085, 76
(s) Other financial labilities 92,.125.63 - 92,215.63
Other current liabilities 354 IM1E7 31687 65864
Frovisions 8238 - 52.38
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,600,870.61 19,332.38 1,620,202.99




CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2017
47. Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards
47.2 Effect of IND AS adoption on the Balance Sheet as at 1st April, 2015 [Rupees in lakhs)

Effect of Ind AS adoption Efect of Transition
on the Balance Sheet as at Footnotes | Previous GAAP to ind AS f Other ind AS
1st April, 2015 Adjustments

ASSETS

(1} Mon-current assets

Praperty, Plant and Equipment 35e and 35f{ii) 783,037.80 {44,377.53) 243,660.27

Capital work-in-progress I5¢ B55,820.68 14,014.70 £69,835.38

Intangible assets 35H(ii) 16.75 44,390,595 44,407.34

Financial Assets

(1) Othaer Financial Assots 13595 - 135.95

Current Tax Assets (Net] 1,110.55 - 1,110.55

Crther Non Current assets 16,589.81 0.00 16.589.81

[2) Current assets =

Invemtories 5.00 500

Finamcial Azsets

(i} Trade Receivables ¥ s 5

(lip Cash and cash eguivalents 121,310.77 - 121,310.77

[il) Crther Bank balonces S500.00 500.00

[Iv) Dther Financial Assets 92 ,674.61 9267461

Current Tox Assets (net) 477.35 - 477,35
_ Other current assets 35y | siesl | 0 3061 | f 649.52

Total Assets 1,377,298.17 14,058.37 1,391,356.54

ECLITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Equity Share capital 390,106.90 E 390, 106.50

rhir equity 35h, 35¢ 62, 104 B0 {342.87) 61,761.93

and 351(1)

LIABILITIES

[1) Mon-current Habilities

Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings B25,718.00 = B25,728.00

(ii} Ether financial labilities 354 20,725.64 {77.03) 20,648.61

Frowisions 18183 - 181 83

Deferred tax llabilities (Nat) 16.70 - 16.70

Other Mon-Current Liabilithes 350 & 35c - 14 401.24 1440124

(2] Current liabllities

Financial Liabilities

(i} Trade payables 4,445.28 . 4,446.28

{il} Other financial Nabilities 73.828.58 {0.00) 7382858

ther current Habilities asd 197 7203 182.00

Provisions 54 46 - 54.46

Total Equity and Liabilities 1,377.298.17 14,058.37 1,391,356.54




CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2017
47. Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards
47.3 Effect of IND AS adoption on the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended

31st March, 2016
(Rupees in lakhs)

Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Effect of Transition
Statement of Profit and Loss for Footnotes | Previous GAAP to Ind AS [ Other ind AS
the year ended 31st March, 2016 Adjustments
Revenue from operations 35d 1,297 83 12.84 1,310.67
Other intome 35b & 35c 11.513.08 51.84 11,564.92
1. Total Revenue 12,810.90 64,68 12 875.59
Expenses:
Operating expenses 1,799.25 - 1,799.25
Employee benelits expense 35t 2,455.49 6.60 246209
Finance costs asd 7T 11.36 791.13
Depreciation and amortization expense 6,100.59 - 6,100.58
Other expenses 1,803.14 . 1.803.14
Prior period ltems 35 {13.06) 13,06 .
I, Total expenses 12,925.18 3101 12,956.19
1. Prafit before was (1 - 11) (114.28) 33.66 [B0.61)
¥, Tax expense:

[1) Current tax

_(2) Deferred tax 6,992 50 * 6,992,50
V. Profit (Loss] for the period {1l - V) (7106.77) 3366 | (7073.10)

V. Other comprehensive Income

{1} ttems that will not be reclassified

to profit or loss 354 - (6.19) {6.19)
Remeasurement of post employment

__benefit obligations

Total Comprehensive Income
for the period (V+ Vi)
[Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other (7,106.77) 27.48 (7.079.29)
Comprehenshve Income for the period)




CHENNAI METRO RAILLIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2017

48. Other Disclosures
48.1 Earnings in Foreign Currency - Rs.Nil/- (Previous Year: Rs, Nil}

48.2 Outgo in Foreign Currency. lin ¥ Lakhs}
Details 2016-17 ' 2015-16

a} Foreign Travel
- Directors 1.22 f.4&
= Others 574 18.74
b) Professional fees to Consultants 11886 288.99
€] _Interest payments Mill Hil
_4d]_Contract payments 1571687 30160.87
e} Others Nil wil

49, The financial Statements for the year as approved by the Board of Directors on 18.08,2017
and the report thereon Issued by the Statutory Auditors were revised pursuantto C & Ag's
Audit observations during the course of audit under Section 143{6)(a) of the Companies Act,

2013. The revision has noimpact onthe reported figure is the balance sheet, Profit & Loss
Account

50. Previous year figures have been regrouped or reclassified wherever necessary to make them
comparable with current year's figures and the amounts are rounded off to nearest lakhs of

rupees.
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
M /s Vardhaman & Co Pankaj Kumar Bansal, IAS Rajeev Narayan Dwivedi
Chartered Accountants Managing Director Director
(DIN: 05197128) (DIN: 07554468)
vV Baskaran Sujatha layara]
Partner Director-Finance & Chief Financial Officer
M. No: 012202 (DIN: 07531722)
FRN: 0045225
P Andal
Company Secretary
(M.No: AZB465)
Place: Chennai Place: Chenmai
Date : 20-09-2017 Date : 20-09-2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report
TO THE MEMBERS OF CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED

1) Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED
(‘the Company”] which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the Statement of
Profitand Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

2) Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

3)

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
(and other applicable provisions) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) with respect to the
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs, financial position, loss, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adeguate accounting recordsin accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our
audit. We have taken Into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.
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a)

5)

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2017
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section143 (10) of the Act.
Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit for the year ended 31.03.2017 to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement,
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2017.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud
ar error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control
relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors,
aswell as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended
31.03.2017.
Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2017, give the information
required by the Act in the manner so required and glve a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at31st March, 2017, its loss, its cash flow and the changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.
Emphasis of Matters
Without qualifying our opinion, we further draw attention of the Management to the
following :
a) Expenditure - CSR activities - We were informed that CSR policy Is yet to be finalized
and no contract is made for CSR expenditure. Hence liability during the year isyet to
be provided.
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b} Woedrawattention to the following matters in the Notes to the financial statements :
MNote No.35-Changes due to adoption of Indian Accounting Standards:-
(Motes to Financial Statement for the yearended 31.03.2017)
35-a) Subordinate debtfrom Govt of India (interest free loan- Government grant)
has resulted in decrease in borrowings and increaseinthe Government
Grants by Rs.22,612.81 lakhs as at 31st March 2016.
35-b) Landreceived asgift (Government Grant)

hasresultedinanincrease in otherincome for FY 2015-16 by Rs.1.39 lakhs
and also other equity is reduced by Rs.386.54 lakhs.

35-c) Grantrelatingtodepreciable asset—TNVAT Reimbursement:

hasresulted in deferred income (GovernmentGrant) hasincreased by
Rs.19,314.56 lakhs ( 1st April 2015 - Rs.14,014.70 lakhs ) with corresponding
increase in the value ofthe property, plant and equipmentbyRs.6.44 lakhs
{1st April 2015—Nil) and Capital workin progress [CWIP) has increased by
Rs.19,308.12 lakhs (1st April 2015 - Rs.14,014,70 lakhs). The above treatment
hasincreased the otherincome by Rs.50.45 lakhsintheyearEnded 31st
March 2016.

35-d] Security Deposit:
has resulted in decrease in the amount of security deposit by Rs.318.46 lakhs
as at 31.03.2016 (1.4.2015 — Rs.77.03 lakhs) and an increase in deferred
income by Rs.316.97 lakhs {1.4.2015-Rs.77.03 lakhs). Further, the profit for
theyear endedand total equity as on 31.3.2016 has increased by
Rs.12.84 lakhs due to amortization of prepaid rent of Rs.77.03 lakhs which is
partially offset by interest expenditureof R5.11.36 lakhs recognized on
security deposit.

35-e) Prior perioditems:;
has resulted in affect equity as at date of transition to IND As as at 1.4.2015
tothe extent of Rs. 13.06 lakhs with consequent impact in opening carrying
value of property, plant and equipment.

35-f} (i) Recognition of Gratuity as Defined Benefit Plan:

has resulted gratuity expense charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss for
the year ended 31st March 2017 is higher by Rs.8.56 lakhs (PY Rs.6.60 lakhs).
Further re-measurement loss recognized in other comprehensive income
duringthe yearis Rs.3.99 lakhs (PY is 6.19 lakhs)
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35-f){ii) Reclassification of Lease Hold Lands:

The company has re-evaluated the classification of such lands under
Ind AS 17 - Lease based on which, it has been decided to re-classify the same
asan Intangible Asset since it is in the nature of permission to cross railway
land. Accordingly, the carrying value of such assets as on 1st April 2015 has
been reclassified and disclosed as Intangible Assets, with consequent
reclassification in the financial statements for the year ended 31st March
2017 and 31st March 2016.

Such Intangible Assets is amortised over the period 70 years as stated above.
We were informed by the Management that since there Is no change in the
useful life, there isno impact on the statement of Profit or Loss as a result of
this re-classification.

Other matters

The Financial Statements for the year as approved by the Board of Directors on 18.08.2017 and
the report thereon issued by the Statutory Auditors were revised pursuant to C & AG's audit
observation during the course of audit under section 143 (6) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013.
The original audit report has been revised to include Note Nos. 35 (a), 37, 2.9, 4.3 and modified
Notes No. 16, 23.2, 37, 2.4 and paint No.2 of annexure 'C’ of the Audit Report & re-classification of
itemns In Cash Flow Statements and these above changes have no impact on the reported figure in
the Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account.

6. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

i} As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), as amended,
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of
the Act, we givein the "Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3and 4 of the Order to the extent possible.

il The Comptroller and Auditor-General of India has issued directions indicating the areas to
be examined in terms of sub-section (5) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013,
the compliance of whichissetout in "Annexure C", on the basis of such checks of the
books and records of the company as we considered appropriate and according to the
information and explanations given to us.
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iii) Asrequired by Section 143 (2) of the Act,

(a) we report that: [a] We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

(&) In our epinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Companyso far asit appears from our examination of those books,

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement and
Statement of changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of accounts.

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31.3.2017
comply with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is a
Government Company; therefore, the Provision of Section 164 (2) of the Companies
Act, 2013 is not applicable pursuant to the Gazette Notification No. GSR 4B63(E) dated
05,06.2014 issued by the Government of indla.

We were informed by the Management that, on the basis of the written
representations receive from the directors as on 31st March 2017 taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March 2017 from
being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Reportin "Annexure A"

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i} The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
positionin its Ind AS financial statements under contingent liabilities - Refer Note
No 37 tothe financial statements;

ii) The company has made provision, as required under applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any on long term contracts.
The company did not have derivative contracts;

€&
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iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND by the Company.

{h} With reference to notification issued by The Ministry of Corporate Affairs regarding
amendment to Schedule - IIl to the Companies Act, 2013 regarding disclosure of the
details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period from
B.11.2016 to 30.12.2016 :: In accordance with the Books of accounts, the Company
had furnished the requisite disclosures in the Financial Statements as to holdings as
well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from 8.11.2016 to
30.12.2016" (Refer Note No.46 to the Financial Statements).

for Vardhaman & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 0045225

V. Baskaran
Place: Chennal Sr. Partner
Date : 20-09-2017 M.No.012202
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 6-iii (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of
our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of CHENNAI METRO RAIL

LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
contrals based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note”) and
the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
Internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal contral based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud orerror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detall, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our apinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on “the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Contrals Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India®.

for Vardhaman & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 0045225

V. Baskaran
Place: Chennai Sr. Partner
Date : 20-09-2017 M.No.012202
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ANNEXURE “B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

REPORT ON THE COMPANY (Auditor’s Report) ORDER, 2016, UNDER CLAUSE (i)
OF SUB SECTION 11 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (the Act)

Referred toin paragraph 6{i) under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement’

of our report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the year ended March
31,2017:

(i} a)} According to the information and explanation given to us and records examined by us
the Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details of Fixed Assets.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has a program of
verification of fixed assets to cover all the items in a phased manner over a period of
3 yearswhich, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets. During the financial year, the company has carried out the
physical verification of assets through internal auditors as per the policy of the Company.
Title deeds of immovable property :
(DETAILS FURNISHED BY THE COMPANY)

According to information and explanations given by the Management, the title deeds of
immovable properties included in fixed assets are held in the name of the company except as
stated below (provided by the Management):

Land acquired with payment consideration - 2633 sqg.mtr& 1.28 acre
Land acquired under sub-ordinate debt - 197415.71 5g.mtr
Leasehold Land (Southern Railway Land) - 37919.93 sq.mtr

ii) As informed to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to
companies, firms, Limited Liability partnerships or other parties covered in the Register
maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iil) {a)
to (C) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

iii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not given
loan or made Investment or given guarantee and security for the persons specified
under provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore the
provisions of clause 3 (iv) (a) to (b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and
hence not commented upon.
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iv)

vi) a)

b

c)

As explained to us, The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and
hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections
73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not
applicable.

As informed, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records
under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act,

According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise,
Value added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities
with delaysinafew instances,

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2017 for a period of more
than six months from the date on when they become payable.

According to the information and explanation given to us, there are na dues of income
tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax cutstanding on
account of any dispute except as given below.

Sl.No.

Particulars Forum where FY 2016-17 | FY 2015-16
dispute is pending

Demand from ESIC department High Court, Chennai 1177 11.77

Demand of Tax deducted @ source under
Chapter XVII-FY 2007-08 ACIT, Chennai 0.07 0.07

Demand of Tax deducted @ source under
Chapter XVI1-FY 2009-10 ACIT, Chennai 0.16 0.16

Demand of Tax deducted @ source under
Chapter XV1I-FY 2010-11 ACIT, Chennal 0.08 0.08

Demand of Tax deducted @ source under
Chapter XV1I-Fy 2011-12 ACIT, Chennal B.47 6.47

Demand of Tax deducted @ source under
Chapter XVII-FY 2012-13 ACIT, Chennal 0.17 0.17




Vardhaman & Co Mew No.12 (Ofd No.31-A}
Chartered Accountants Krishina Street, T.Nagar,
Chennal — 800017

Tel : D44 = 24344627 [ 24342585

Email id; vardhaman_1973@hotmail.com

vii) Defaultinrepayment ofloan or borrowings:

The Company has not availed loan from any Financial Institutions or Banks or Debentures
except :

Loan from Japan International Corporation Agency (JICA):

Commitment charges and interest accrued on borrowings - payable to Japan International

Corporation Agency Limited :
31.03.2017 ..Rs.34294.10 lakhs
31.03.2016 ..Rs.23332.28 lakhs

The agreement stipulates that in case of delay in payment of interest, overdue charges, to
the extent of 2% on the outstanding amount was also payable. So far the Company has not
paid any interest {provisions already been made), and also overdue charges to the extent of
2% on the outstanding amount was not provided, We were informed by the Management
that the Company has already requested Central Government to postpone the payment of
interest till commencement of the operations. The confirmation from the Central
Government is yet to be received by the Company.

Further in our opinion and according to the explanations given to us the term loans from
Government of India against Japan International Cooperation Agency and Sub-ordinate
debt from Government of India and Government of Tamil Nadu were applied for the
purpose for which loans and Sub-ordinate debts were raised.

vili) Money raised by wayof IPO

The Company has not raised any monies by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{including debt instruments), accordingly paragraph 3 (ix) of the order is not applicable.

ix] Asperthe information and explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud
by the Company or on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the year.

¥} As per the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act 2013;
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%} In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of
clause 4 (xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xii) Related partytransactions:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where
applicable and detalls of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
asrequired by the applicable accounting standards.

xiil) As explained to us inventories of stores and spare parts have been verified by the
Management at reasonable intervals in relation to the size of the Company and nature of
business and no material discrepancies were noted on physical verification,

xiv] As informed by the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented
upon,

*v] In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

for Vardhaman & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 0045225

V. Baskaran

Place: Chennal Sr. Partner
Date : 20-09-2017 M.No.012202
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Annexure “C" to Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the directions issued by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India
under sub section 5 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act)

{Referred to in paragraph-6 (i) under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory
Requirement’ of our report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended March 31,2017:)

According to the information and explanations given to us we report as under:
No Particulars Remarks

1 Whether the company has clear title / lease deeds | The company has clear title deeds for all free
for freehaold and leasehold land respectively? If not, | hold land except as stated below: (informed
please state the area of freehold and leasehold land | by the Managemant)

forwhich title / lease deeds are not available.

Details Titles to be
obtained

Private Lands /

Private Negotiations / 1

TDS Lands /

Government Agencies

State Government Lands B4
acquired with payment consideration
L26335g.mtr& 1.28 acre
Land acquired under sub-ordinate debt:
197415.71 S5q.mtr

Leasehold Land: 37919.93 Sq.mtr
(Southern Railway Land)

2 Whether there are any cases of waiver / write off of | As per information and explanation given to
debts / loans [ interest, etc., if yes, the reasons there | us, the Company has not walved / written off
for and the amount invalved debts [ loans / interest during the period of
audit.

&



3 |Whether proper records are
maintained for inventories lying with
third parties & assets recelved as gift /
grant{s)from the Government or
other authorities.

As per the information and explanations provided to us on the
basis of our audit observation, there is no inventory lying with
the third parties during the audit period. The company s
malintaining adequate records for the lands that were
received as Gift from the Government and also from Private
Parties. Asonthe date of balance sheetthe value of Gift of
Land amounted to Rs.1034.96 Lakhs. The particulars of the
land capitalized are as follows:

ﬁ Name of the party [
the

1 Cuone Projects

Private Limited

Govt/ Private] Area
{Sq.mir)

To0.60

2 Goldwinnar

Company Pvt Limited

3 A Office, &nna Salal,
Teynampet

Privain 197.51

Government a2

During the year 2016-17, in compliance with INDAS, land
received as gift from Government was treated as Government
Grant by way of setting up as deferred income which
was hitherto included in Capital Reserve. Land received
from private parties was continued to be treated as Capital
Resarye, As a result of this change, the capital reserve
was reduced by Rs.386.54 lakh (Refer Note.35b) and stood
at Rs.648.43 lakh ason 31st March 2017,

for Vardhaman & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 0045225

V. Baskaran
5r. Partner
M.No 012202

Place
Date

Chennal
20-09-2017
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Inicdion Audit anid Accounts Departiment
Office of the Principal Direetor af Commerciad Andis and
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Toalw fDate: 2L00.2017
ks PDCA/CHENNAVCA NV Cord CMRL2-87/2017-18/ 4 16
#an Ao

The Chairman,
Chennai Metro Rail Linited,
(Chenn,

Sir,

Sub:  Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 143 {6)
(b} of the Companies Act, 2013 on the financial statements of Chenmai Metro Rail
Limited, Chennai for the year ended 31 March 2017,

T LT

| forward herewith the comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under
Section 143 (6) (b) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the financial statements of Chennai Metro Rail
Limited, Chennai, for the year ended 31 March 2017,

Five copies of Primed Annual Report of your Company may be arranged to be forwarded
1o this office.

The receipt of this letter may kindly be acknowledged.

Yours ffthfully,

Eé;;/
(E. S5 [VASAN)

PRINCIPAL DIRECTOR OF COMMERCIAL AUDIT
AND EX-OFFICIO MEMBER, AUDIT BOARD, CHENNAL

Encl: Audit Certilicate

Sfenn wrbw was, B - 3, 0%, Ee ARl o, Sk - eendy
Tndism O Bhavan, Lovel- 2, 139, Mabatu Gandhi Rosd, Chenmal - H00834
Tel: 4420330147 Fan: M4-25330142 145 e-mails, mabebenualicap gov.in
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NTS OF MPTROLLER A EN N

UND N_14M6)(b 0 MPANIES 13
ANCIAL STATE N L LIMIT A
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

The preparation of financial stalements of Chennai Metro Rail Limited, for the year
ended 31 March 2017 in accordance with the financial reporting framework preseribed under
the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the company. The
statutory auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section
139 (5) of the Act are responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under
section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on
auditing prescribed under scetion 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by
themn vide their Audit Report dated 20 September 2017,

I, on behalfl of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit under section 143(6)(a) of the Act of the financial statements of Chennai
Metro Rail Limited, Chennai for the year ended 31 March 2017, This supplementary audit
has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the statutory
auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel
and a selective examination of some of the accounting records. In view of the revisions made
in the financial statements by the monagement, as a resolt of my audit observations
highlighted during supplementary audit as indicated in the Note No49 of the financial
statements, | have po further comments 1o offer upon or supplement to the statutory auditor’s
report under section 143(6)(b) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

1_._.&".'
(E. IVASAN)
PRMNCIPAL DIRECTOR OF COMMERCIAL AUDIT
AND EX-OFFICIO MEMBER, AUDIT BOARD, CHENNAL

Place: Chennai
Drate: 20092017
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Form No. MGT - 11
Proxy Form
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3)
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN : UG0100TN20075GC065596
Name of the Company - CHENNAI METRO RAIL LIMITED
Registered Office - Admin Building, CMRL Depot,

Poonamallee High Road, Koyambedu,
CHENNAI - 600 107

Name of the member (s)
Registered Address
E-mail ID

Folio No / Client ID

DP ID

| / We, being the member (s) of ———————— shares of the above named company, hereby
appoint

1. Name
Address
E-mail ID
Signature : , of failing him

Z. Name
Address
E-mail ID
Signature ‘- , of failing him

3. Name
Address
E-mail ID
Signature ; -, of failing him

as myfour proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for mefus and on myfour behalf at the
10th Annual General Meeting to be held on the Mondoy, 25th doy of September 2017 ot
11.30 AM at the Registered Office of the Company at Admin Building, CMRL Depot, Pocnamallee
High Road, Koyambedu, Chennai — 600 107 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such
resolutions as are indicated below :



Ordinary Business

1. To adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017, Statement of Income and the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2017 together with the Comments
of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India;

2. Tofixremuneration of Statutory Auditors for the Financial Year 2017-18

Signed this —————dayof 2017 Affix
Revenue
Stamp
Signature of Shareholder
Signature of Praxy holder (s):
Note:

This form of proxy In order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at
the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of
the Meeting.
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